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Introduction by the Executive Director ï Operations  
 

North East Derbyshire District Council covers an area of 100 square miles, with a 
population approaching 100,000 people and operates alongside Derbyshire County 
Council in providing local authority services to our residents. The Council has 394 
employees. This report sets out how the District Council has served our community 
during the 2015/16 financial year outlining both our service delivery and financial 
performance. Whilst the main emphasis is on the previous financial year (2015/16), 
the report also covers the ability of the Council to continue to provide sustainable 
services which meet local needs, and outlines how we work in partnership to 
enhance the prosperity of the communities we serve. A key partnership is the 
Strategic Alliance with Bolsover District Council which commenced in April 2011 
which has seen progressively greater integration of service delivery between the 
two authorities.  
 
This report is intended to provide a short summary of the Councilôs activities. 
Further information is available via the Councilôs website, or in other formats by 
request. 
 
The Councilôs Performance and Outcomes for Local Residents 
 
The emphasis of the Statement of Accounts which follows this narrative report is 
upon the financial performance of the Council. In considering our financial 
performance it is however, important not to lose sight of the fact that the strength of 
our financial performance is ultimately measured by our ability as a Council to 
provide a sustainable comprehensive range of value for money services that meet 
both our statutory obligations and the needs of our local area. This narrative seeks 
to outline some of the services and projects which the Council has delivered during 
the course of 2015/16, linked to our plans for the future. 
 
The Councilôs vision is for the district to be a place that is clean and attractive, a 
place where people are proud to live and work, where they will prosper and are 
safe, happy and healthy.  
 
The Council has four strategic aims designed to deliver this vision through priorities 
that cover the four year life of the Corporate Plan (2015-2019). In order to better 
understand how the Council has performed during the course of the current 
financial year, the table below sets out headline progress against the Councilôs 
agreed Strategic Aims and Priorities, together with identifying some areas that need 
addressing in order to ensure that the Council secures good progress in achieving 
Strategic Aims and Priorities by the end of the current plan period.  Given that this is 
effectively the first year of the refreshed Corporate Plan 2015/19, much is inevitably 
work in progress where we are working to secure completion over the period of the 
Corporate Plan.    
 

Strategic Aim / Priorities  
 

Progress Against Key Targets 

Unlocking Our Growth Potential 

¶ Supporting enterprise  

¶ Unlocking development potential 

¶ The Council is progressing with 
partners to ensure the 
regeneration of the Mill Lane site 
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¶ Enabling housing growth 
 

and the cleaning up of the former 
Coalite land. These will provide in 
total 28 hectares of housing and 
commercial land.  

¶ The Planning Development 
Management Team exceeded 
national targets for processing 
planning applications.  

¶ A key requirement is the need to 
progress the adoption of a Local 
Plan with the current long stop 
target date being March 2018.  

¶ The latest figures for New Homes 
Bonus saw housing growth of 473 
housing units in the year to 
October 2015. 

¶ Funding from the LEPôs has 
enabled   the Council to progress 
a wide range of training and   
employment promotion 
programmes with over 200 
residents supported through pre-
employment activities . 

Providing our Customers with Excellent 
Services 

¶ Increasing customer confidence 
and satisfaction with our services 

¶ Improving customer contact and 
access to information 

¶ Championing equality and 
diversity 

¶ Supporting 
vulnerable/disadvantaged people 

¶ Working with partners to address 
poverty 

¶ Providing good quality housing 

¶  Customer satisfaction levels are 
good across the range of Council 
services. 

¶ The Council provides 6 contact 
centres, supported by telephony 
and internet access to services.  

¶ The Council invests significant 
funding in the Voluntary and 
Community Services sector and 
in our Partnership Team to 
provide effective support to 
vulnerable /disadvantaged 
people.  

¶ The Council is investing over 
£10m a year in Council housing 
which is part of our wider 
approach to facilitate good quality 
housing across all tenures. 

Supporting our Communities to be 
Healthier, Safer, Cleaner and Greener 

¶ Contributing to improving health 
and well being 

¶ Increasing participation in sport 
and leisure activities 

¶ Working with partners to reduce 
crime and anti social behaviour 

¶ Participation in sports/recreation 
continues to increase by 9,000 
residents year on year. 

¶ In conjunction with partners we 
have programmes in place to 
promote active and healthy 
lifestyles, to tackle childhood 
obesity and anti social behaviour. 
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¶ Increasing recycling 

¶ Ensuring a high standard of 
environmental maintenance and 
cleanliness 

¶ Developing attractive 
neighbourhoods 
 

 

¶ Combined recycling/composting 
rates have reached 45.6% this 
year, well on track to meet the 
target of 49% by 2019. 

¶ The annual litter cleanliness 
target of 96% was achieved and 
the dog fouling cleanliness target 
of 98% was exceeded. 

¶ Work to regenerate two town 
centres by 2019 is underway with 
action plans due to be finalised 
during 2016. 

 
Transforming Our Organisation 

¶ Supporting and engaging with 
employees 

¶ Making the best use of assets 

¶ Demonstrating good governance 

¶ Ensuring financial sustainability 
and increasing revenue streams  

¶ Transforming services through 
the use of technology 

¶ Actively engaging with partners to 
benefit the community 

¶ Maximising opportunities with 
Bolsover District Council through 
the Strategic Alliance 

¶ Investors In People 
reaccreditation at silver level was 
achieved in 2015. 

¶ The Council has completed its 
relocation to refurbished offices at 
Mill Lane, is securing high 
occupancy levels in its 
commercial estate, is disposing of 
surplus assets to facilitate the 
wider regeneration of the District. 

¶ The Council has an effective 
modern, ICT infrastructure 
providing cost effective services 
to both residents and employees. 

¶ The Council has identified 
income/savings of £0.525m in 
year one of the plan as a result of 
the transformation Programme 
against the four year target of 
£0.600m. 

 
The successful achievement of the Councilôs agreed priorities and targets is key to 
both ensuring effective delivery of services to local residents, whilst providing a 
sustainable future for the Council itself as an organisation.  
 
While the above table is invariably a ósnapshotô which cannot fully cover the range 
of Council activities and outcomes, I take the view that it is consistent with a 
conclusion that during 2015/16 the Council provided a wide range of value for  
money services to local residents. It is particularly pleasing to note that we have 
made continued progress in addressing both our Economic Growth Development 
and Transformation agendas. These are the key to developing income streams to 
support Council services, to helping secure the wider economic prosperity of the 
District, to proving cost effective and efficient services and to offering residents a 
range of accessible customer focussed services. The Council recognises its limited 
level of resources and works with a range of partners to ensure that residents 
benefit from good services from a full range of public sector providers. Our 
performance management arrangements mean we are well placed to identify and 
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address areas of concern before they escalate into matters which undermine 
service delivery. On the basis of successful progress against the Corporate Plan 
during the first year of that Plan, I am of the view that the Council can successfully 
deliver against its agreed Strategic Aims and Priorities over the current Plan period 
to 2019. It is particularly pleasing to note that the Council has over the past year 
made good progress in the regeneration of key sites at the Avenue, at the former 
Coalite works, and is progressing work at Callywhite Industrial Estate a key site in 
the North of the District. 
 
As part of the Performance Management Framework we have systematically 
collected details of complaints and compliments. These management tools are used 
both to address any specific issues that have arisen and also to enable us to better 
understand where services are in need of improvement. We have in place a formal 
Customer Service Code of Practice and Standards and as part of our drive to 
further improve standards are aiming to secure accreditation for Customer Service 
Excellence by March 2018. On the basis of the information collected by the Council 
our services including housing, the contact centres, Environmental Health and 
Leisure receive good satisfaction ratings.   
 
The longer term sustainability of both our service delivery and the Councilôs 
financial position are protected by Corporate, Service and Financial Plans which 
cover a three year period. These are supported by a Risk Management Framework 
which identifies and mitigates the strategic and operational risks which could 
prevent our plans being achieved in practice. The Council can do much to manage 
the risks it faces it does need to be recognised that some of the major Strategic 
Risks are only partially within its control. Key Strategic Risks include: 
 

¶ The requirement to adapt to legislative change which may require an 
enhanced range of services, may reduce the financial resources available to 
the Council, or may impact on our ability to provide services which meet local 
needs.  

¶ In common with the wider public sector we are facing the ongoing impact of 
the austerity agenda. This potentially leads to the Council having to reduce 
or stop key services, to the inability to balance our budget, or to the 
weakening of internal control. 

¶ Our ability to attract and retain the staff required to operate an effective 
Council. 

¶ The impact of wider factors such as economic recession upon local 
communities, the loss of a major employer, or an Emergency Plan / Business 
continuity issue.   

¶ The outcome of the referendum vote to leave the European Union will create 
further uncertainties concerning national economic conditions, legislative 
change and whether European Union funding streams will be replaced. 

¶ The uncertainty surrounding NNDR appeals and their potential volatility year 
on year. 

 
There is an effective culture of risk management in place across the Council which 
should facilitate the effective identification and management of risk to help ensure 
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that risk does not prevent the achievement of Strategic Aims / Priorities or Key 
Targets.  
 
 
Financial Performance 
 
General Fund  
 
The Councilôs main revenue account is known as the General Fund. The costs of all 
services (excluding Council Housing) are charged against it. The General Fund 
budget is supported by the council tax which for 2015/16 was not increased, with 
the Band D Council Tax charge remaining at £174.37 for the year.  
 
During 2015/16, the Council continued its established policy of robust financial 
management to help maintain high quality services for our residents.  The original 
budget was set in March 2015 with an efficiency and savings targets of £0.500m to 
be met from identified areas including repayment of Invest to Save borrowing, 
Strategic Alliance secondments, transformation savings, property rationalisation 
and income generation.  
 
During the year the following major issues impacted upon the budget: 
 

¶ The savings and efficiencies generated by the Council during the year 
through robust financial management have helped reduce the impact of 
continued reductions in Government funding.   

¶ The Business Rates retention scheme and membership of the Derbyshire 
Business Rates Pool has generated additional income from economic 
growth, although this income is accompanied by a higher level of risk.  

¶ Across the Council, departments continued reviewing delivered services, re-
engineered processes and procedures in order to generate efficiency 
savings. 

¶ Opportunities for further joint working with Bolsover District Council our 
Strategic Alliance partner were agreed often in response to opportunities 
arising from the vacancy management process. 

¶ A vacancy management process was maintained throughout the year, 
accompanied by careful management of all non-employee costs. 

 
As a result of the above actions, effective budget monitoring and a Cabinet led 
budget working group, the necessary efficiencies and savings have been identified 
and achieved whilst minimising the impact upon service delivery. By the end of the 
year we had achieved our savings target of £0.500m, added £0.200m to the 
General Fund Reserve and increased the contribution to the Invest to Save 
Reserve to £0.937m. This enhancement in the level of balances is crucial given that 
the Council is facing a savings target approaching £2m in the period to March 2019. 
 
Effective financial management over the past few years has enabled the Council to 
gradually increase its level of General Fund balances to one of £2m which is a 
realistic level. Against the background of ongoing reductions in the level of 
Government funding it is crucial that the Council continues to maintain robust 
budgetary control and secure its ongoing savings targets. While the level of General 
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Reserves is supplemented by a further £2.783m of Invest to Save balances that will 
be required to provide the initial investment to generate income growth and fund 
restructuring of services necessary for us to meet our savings targets over the 
coming years.  
The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
 
The Housing Revenue Account is a legally separate account which ring fences the 
income from council house rents, which are used to meet the costs of managing 
and maintaining the Councilôs housing stock.  The Council continued to operate in 
accordance with the Government rent restructuring criteria which required an 
increase in rents of 2.2% for our tenants in 2015/16. 
 
The financial year 2015/16 is the ninth year in which the management of the 
Councilôs housing has been undertaken by Rykneld Homes Limited an Arms Length 
Management Organisation (ALMO).  Rykneld Homes Limited is funded by the 
Councilôs Housing Revenue Account through the payment of a Management Fee 
which in 2015/16 was set at £9.902m.  
 
Alongside the Decent Homes capital programme being delivered by Rykneld 
Homes the Council continued to support the drive to improve the council stock with 
a strong commitment to repairs and maintenance expenditure. 
 
The HRA outturn was £0.154m better than anticipated which meant that the 
reserves are increased by £0.173m to £2.971m at 31 March 2016. Again these are 
considered to be adequate rather than a generous level of financial reserves in the 
light of the risks facing the Councilôs HRA. 
 
Capital expenditure and resources 
 
The Council has invested £23.640m on capital schemes in the year.  This is split 
between the Housing Revenue Account (£20.607m), private sector housing 
improvement works (£0.393m) and General Fund capital expenditure (£2.640m).  
  
The main capital schemes delivered in 2015/16 by the Council were: 
 

¶ Investment in the Decent Homes programme for improving the Councilôs 
housing stock of £12.357m; 

¶ The Tarran replacement scheme at Eckington and Killamarsh of £3.056m; 

¶ The provision of External Wall Insulation on Council Dwellings of £4.222m; 

¶ The demolition and rebuilding of properties at Keats Way, Grassmoor of 
£0.461m; 

¶ Other HRA capital schemes of £0.511m; 

¶ Private Sector Disabled Facilities Grants of £0.393m; 

¶ The refurbishment of premises at Mill Lane, Wingerworth and remediation 
work on the adjoining land of £0.600m.  The land remediation will 
complement the major work being undertaken on the Avenue site and 
provide a significant development site in the District; 

¶ Vehicle Replacement £1.895m; 

¶ Other General Fund capital schemes of £0.145m  
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The capital programme was fully financed in the year utilising grants (£1.389m), 
prudential borrowing (£3.965m), major repair and development reserves 
£17.749m), revenue contributions (£0.146m) and usable capital receipts from asset 
sales (£0.391m). 
 
Treasury Management  
 
At 31 March 2016, the Council has a total capital financing requirement (Council 
debt) of £171.145m. This shows a net decrease in the year of £3.314m.  The net 
decrease reflects prudential borrowing of £3.966m offset by debt repayments of 
£7.280m.  The main element of the prudential borrowing relates to the HRA Tarran 
replacement project (£1.843m), the refurbishment of offices and land remediation at 
Mill Lane, Wingerworth (£0.228m), the purchase of vehicles (£1.895m). In addition  
to this the Council made a loan to Rykneld Homes Limited as a registered provider 
(£0.761m), which has enabled the continuation of a new build programme of social 
housing by the company.  The level of debt repayment reflects the Councils 
commitment to repay the HRA self financing loan over the 30 period of the business 
plan (£4.300m) alongside the approved scheduled debt repayments in the year 
(£2.980m).  
 
To meet the capital financing requirement the Council has external borrowing from 
the Public Works Loans Board (£156.753m) together with leasing arrangements 
(£0.005m).  The remainder is effectively financed from utilising the Councilôs own 
reserves and balances (£14.387m). 
 
No new leasing arrangements were entered into during 2015/16 while the overall 
leased asset liability has reduced in the year by £0.118m as a result of leasing 
repayments on council vehicles. These are now purchased as part of the capital 
programme. 
 
The loans from the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) total £156.753m excluding 
accrued interest. During the year the Council repaid £2.304m to the PWLB as loans 
matured.   
 
Assets 
 
During 2015/16 the Council concluded the sale of the Councilôs Saltergate offices. 
There were no major acquisitions of Council assets during 2015/16. The Council 
completed its refurbishment of premises at Mill Lane, Wingerworth which has 
become the Councilôs headquarters during 2015/16. The Council sold 60 council 
dwellings under the Right to Buy Legislation, demolished 36 homes, offset by the 
addition of 62 dwellings added to the HRA stock. 
 
The changes to asset values detailed in the accounts have no impact on the 
Council Tax Payer or Housing Tenants but show as an increase or reduction in the 
net worth on the Councilôs Balance Sheet. 
 
Reserves and Balances  
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The Council holds usable reserves and balances totalling £15.093m. These include 
general reserves of £4.971m (General Fund and Housing Revenue Account general 
reserves discussed earlier).  Additionally, the Council has £0.393m that relates to 
unapplied capital grants, earmarked general fund revenue reserves of £6.209m and 
earmarked HRA reserves of £1.720m. The Council also has £1.800m of usable 
capital receipts at 31 March 2016.  These reserves are necessary to enable sound 
financial management and to safeguard service delivery at a time when our 
revenues streams and expenditure commitments are increasingly volatile.    
 
Collection Fund  
 
Business Rates 
 
As part of the Business Rates Retention Scheme, all local authorities were given 
the opportunity to work with neighbouring authorities to establish a business rates 
pool. Being part of a pool allows member authorities to be treated as a single 
authority for the purpose of certain calculations under the scheme. With effect from 
1 April 2015, the Council became a member of the Derbyshire Pool which is 
administered by Derby City Council. The advantage of the pool is the opportunity to 
generate additional business growth through collaborative working and to smooth 
out the impact of volatility in business rates income across a wider economic area. 
Under the accounting arrangements for the Derbyshire Pool, the Council pays a 
levy to the pool and receives a redistribution of growth back from the pool at the end 
of each financial year. The levy paid in 2015/16 was £0.203m and the redistributed 
growth received was £0.199m 
 
In 2015/16, £16.537m of Business Rates income was raised. An anticipated surplus 
of £0.733 was forecast in the previous year. After taking account of appropriate 
charges to the collection fund the balance (£13.506m) is shared between the 
Government (50%), NEDDC (40%), Derbyshire County Council (9%) and 
Derbyshire Fire Authority (1%).  During the year £16.045m was paid on account to 
the above parties with the in year deficit balance of £3.272m and opening surplus 
balance of Ã0.796m due to be redistributed in 2016/17 and 2017/18. The Councilôs 
share of the deficit is £0.992m. 
 
Council Tax 
 
In 2015/16 £49.172m of Council Tax Income was raised. After taking account of 
appropriate charges to the Collection Fund the balance (£48.835m) is shared 
between the precepting authorities. In 2015/16, £48.045m was precepted on the 
Collection Fund account and a further £0.982m was paid out in relation to previous 
years surpluses. This leaves a deficit in year of £0.192m which when added to the 
opening balance on the fund (£1.963m) leaves a surplus on the fund of £1.771m at 
31 March 2016. The surplus will be distributed to the precept authorities during 
2016/17 and 2017/18.  The Councilôs share of the surplus is £0.288m. 
 
Pension Fund Reserve 
 
The Councilôs position with regard to the pension fund administered on its behalf by 
Derbyshire County Council has seen a decrease in the liabilities of £9.903m and a 
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decrease in the fair value of assets of £0.377m. The fund shows a net decrease in 
the pension liability of the Council by £9.526m to £43.585m at 31 March 2016. 
 
Financial Planning  
 
The Council plans its finances over the medium term (three years), although this will 
be extended to a period of four years by October 2017 in order to meet the 
Governmentôs requirements for developing an Efficiency Plan. The Council regularly 
reviews its spending plans in light of changing priorities, external factors and 
projected financial forecasts to ensure that they remain robust and sustainable over 
the longer term. The Council is mindful that both the continued austerity programme 
together with legislative changes may have significant impact both upon its financial 
position and service delivery in 2016/17 and future years. It is already anticipated 
that revenue support grant will not be received after 2018/19. While the Council 
faces significant financial challenges over the next four years, we have a good track 
record of delivering efficiencies, an experienced and well qualified management 
team, robust governance arrangements and a workforce committed to delivering 
good quality services. These key assets together with a combination of economic 
growth, service transformation, supported by a reasonable level of financial 
reserves to fund investment in service reconfiguration mean that the Council is well 
placed to meet these challenges. These are key factors that support my view that 
the Council can continue to perform effectively, whilst ensuring that it maintains a 
balanced budget. 
 
General Fund 
 
Since the Governmentôs 2013 spending review, the Council has seen significant 
reductions in its revenue support grant with a further loss of £0.676m in 2016/17 
and £0.589m anticipated for 2017/18. Given the work that has already been 
undertaken to date, the Council is confident of delivering the required savings 
needed to balance the budget in 2016/17 and is considering how the 2017/18 
savings will be achieved.  Work being implemented by the Council includes: 
 

¶ The Council has a well established Transformation Agenda and further 
secondments and joint working arrangements through the Strategic Alliance 
will continue to be explored to secure further savings. 

¶ Continued participation in the Derbyshire Business Rates Pool that will see 
all Derbyshire authorities benefit from growth without having to passport part 
of this increase in income to the Government. This will enable the Council to 
retain a higher proportion of its Business Rates. 

¶ Extend the scope of the work undertaken through the Strategic Alliance.   

¶ Seek to secure the increased income associated with increases in the 
number of homes and business premises operating in the District.  

¶ Refurbish leisure facilities to secure a growth in usage and the associated 
income, as part of the wider strategy of optimising the use of Council assets.  

¶ Repayment of Prudential Borrowing undertaken for asset rationalisation to 
secure savings on interest and principal repayments. 
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¶ Continue with vacancy management arrangements to ensure that 
appropriate use is made of ónatural wastageô as a means to ensure the 
necessary level of financial savings. 

 
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
 
The Council is planning to invest £12.535m in improving its council dwellings during 
2016/17 as part of the asset maintenance programme and regeneration projects. 
This programme is managed by Rykneld Homes Limited and is funded from Major  
Repairs Reserve of £10.000m, prudential borrowing of £1.184m, the Development 
Reserve of £1.000m and an External Grant of £0.351m. The Council anticipate that 
it will be able to continue to fund a HRA Capital Programme in excess of £10m a 
year, with a major new build scheme for 50 homes planned to commence in 2016.  
Alongside in investing in our stock to maintain Decent Homes for our tenants, we 
will continue to provide adequate funding to safeguard standards of tenancy 
management arrangements. The major cost to the HRA remains that of repaying 
the loan which the Council was required to accept as part of the Localisation of the 
HRA settlement of March 2012. These costs including interest and debt repayment 
currently stand at £9.7m a year, or almost 30% of total HRA income. 
 
Summary 
 
The past year has been another challenging period in financial terms for the Council 
but there is a clear awareness throughout the Council of the challenges that the 
authority is facing. A strong and effective culture of financial management across 
the authority has enabled us to deliver both a balanced financial outturn together 
with a range of measures which have reduced the underlying level of expenditure 
whilst maintaining standards of service.  We will continue to work to ensure that this 
progress is maintained in 2016/17 and future years against the background of a 
more challenging financial environment for local government. As a Council we are 
determined to continue to work with and to meet the needs and expectations of 
local residents, our tenants and our key partners.  
 
Finally, we realise the value of closing our accounts promptly to provide up to date 
financial information on which to base our future plans.  It needs, however, to be 
recognised that preparing these accounts becomes increasingly complex every 
year as the requirements of good accounting practice continue to grow more 
stringent.  The staff involved in this process, deserve credit for ensuring that these 
financial statements have been produced in a timely and professional manner. The 
Council has successfully prepared its accounts for audit by 27 May 2016 which will 
help ensure that we are in a good position to meet the revised statutory deadline for 
closing the accounts which will apply from the 2017/18 financial year. It also 
provides the finance team with the opportunity to move on more quickly from 
accounts closure to work with colleagues to address the need to maintain service 
levels, promote economic growth and manage transformation to ensure our future 
financial sustainability.  
 
Bryan Mason CPFA 
Executive Director - Operations 
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Introducing the Accounts of North East Derbyshire District Council 
 
The Legal Basis 
 
The maintenance, preparation and format of the Councilôs accounts are governed 
by statute and recognised good practice.  They follow the requirements for the 
publication of financial information governing local authorities.  The Accounts are 
set out in order to show the day to day income and expenditure and to highlight 
changes to the financial position of the Council during the year. 
 
The document has several statements; these are explained in the summary below: 
 
A Narrative Report (Pages 1-13) 
 
This sets out an overview of the Councilôs financial position as at 31 March 2016 
and its financial performance during the year. 
 
Introductory Statements and Notes (Pages 14-50) 
 
This section includes: 
 
Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts (Page 15) 
Annual Governance Statement (Pages 16-24) 
 
This statement identifies the systems that the Council has in place to ensure that its 
business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that 
public money is safeguarded. 
 
Accounting Policies (Pages 25-46)  
 
The Accounting Policies sets out the basis on which the figures have been compiled 
into the various accounts which comprise this document. 
 
General Notes (Pages 47-50) 
 
This section identifies any issues that may be useful to the reader prior to reading 
the Financial Statements. 
 
Movement in Reserves Statement (Pages 52-54) 
 
This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by 
the authority, analysed into óusable reservesô (i.e. those that can be applied to fund 
expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other reserves. 
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Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (Pages 55-56) 
 
The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement shows the Councilôs actual 
financial performance for the year, measured in terms of resources consumed and 
generated over the past twelve months. 
 
The Balance Sheet (Page 57) 
 
This statement details the financial position of the Council as at 31st March 2016; 
its assets, liabilities, balances and reserves.  
 
The Cash Flow Statement (Page 58) 
 
This consolidated statement summarises the inflows and outflows of cash arising 
from transactions with third parties for revenue and capital purposes. Cash is 
defined for the purpose of this statement, as cash in hand and deposits repayable 
on demand less overdrafts repayable on demand. 
 
Notes to the Core Single Entity Financial Statements (Pages 59-126) 
 
The notes provide explanations of the figures in the main financial statements.  
Where figures shown in the financial statements are expanded in detail, a cross 
reference is made to the statement in which the explanatory note is provided.  
 
Movement in Reserves Statement Notes (Pages 60-65) 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement Notes (Pages 66-69) 
Balance Sheet Notes (Pages 70-98) 
Cash Flow Statement Notes (Pages 99-100) 
Other Notes (Pages 101-126) 
 
Supplementary Single Entity Financial Statements (Pages 127-137) 
 
These consist of the Housing Revenue Account and the Collection Fund. 
 
The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) (Pages 128-133) 
 
This account reflects the statutory obligation to maintain a revenue account for local 
authority housing provision. It includes the debit and credit items required to be 
taken into account in determining the surplus or deficit on the HRA for the year. The 
HRA is incorporated into the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  
 
HRA Income and Expenditure Statement (Page 128) 
 
This account shows in detail the income and expenditure on HRA services included 
in the whole authority Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
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Movement on Housing Revenue Account Statement (Page 129)  
 
This statement shows how the HRA Income and Expenditure Statement surplus or 
deficit for the year reconciles to the movement on the Housing Revenue Account 
balance for the year. 
 
The Collection Fund (Pages 134-137) 
 
This statement details income received by the fund from council taxpayers and 
business ratepayers.  
Council Tax Precept payments are made from the fund to North East Derbyshire 
District Council, Derbyshire County Council, Derbyshire Police Authority and the 
Derbyshire Fire Authority.  
 
NNDR payments are made to the Government, North East Derbyshire District 
Council, Derbyshire County Council and Derbyshire Fire Authority. 
 
Group Accounts (Pages 138-148) 
 
The Council established an Arms Length Management Organisation (ALMO) 
Rykneld Homes Limited from 1 April 2007 to manage the Councilôs housing 
dwellings and associated capital programme. The ALMO is a wholly owned 
subsidiary of the Council. Local authorities with a subsidiary are required to prepare 
group accounts in addition to the single entity financial statements (Accounts and 
Audit Regulations 2003).  The group accounts reflect the transactions of both 
organisations in one set of statements.  These comprise of the following key 
financial statements:- 
 

¶ Group Movement in Reserves Statement 
 

¶ Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
 

¶ Group Balance Sheet 
 

¶ Group Cash Flow Statement 
 

¶ Notes to the Group Accounts 
 
Glossary (Pages 149-155) 
 
This provides an explanation of some of the terms used within the Statement of Accounts. 
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The Councilôs Responsibilities  
 

Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires the Council to make 
arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to ensure that 
one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this 
Council, that officer is the Executive Director - Operations.  
 
The Council is required to manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and 
effective use of resources and safeguard its assets. 
 
The Council is required to approve the Statement of Accounts. 
 
The Executive Director - Operationsô Responsibilities  
 
The Executive Director - Operations is responsible for the preparation of the 
authorityôs Statement of Accounts which, in terms of the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in United Kingdom ("the Codeò), is required 
to present a true and fair view of the financial position of the authority at the 
accounting date and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2016. 
 
In preparing this Statement of Accounts, I have: 
 

¶ selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently; 

¶ made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent; 

¶ complied with the Code. 
 
I have also: 
 

¶ kept proper accounting records which were up to date;  

¶ taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other 
irregularities. 

 
I can confirm that I certify these accounts to give a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the authority at the reporting date and of its expenditure and income for 
the year ended 31 March 2016.  
 
Signed by: 
 
 
 
 
Bryan Mason , CPFA 
Executive Director - Operations    Date 
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Scope of Responsibility 
 
North East Derbyshire District Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is 
conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money 
is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and 
effectively. North East Derbyshire District Council also has a duty under the Local 
Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in 
the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 
 
In discharging this overall responsibility, North East Derbyshire District Council  is 
responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the governance of its 
affairs, and for facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, which includes 
arrangements for the management of risk. 
 
North East Derbyshire District Council has approved and adopted a code of 
corporate governance, which is consistent with the principles of the Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy / Society of Local Authority Chief 
Executives (CIPFA/SOLACE) Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local 
Government. 
 
A copy of the code is available on our website at www.ne-derbyshire.gov.uk. This 
statement explains how North East Derbyshire District Council has complied with 
the code and also meets the requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2015, which requires all authorities to prepare an Annual Governance Statement.  
 
The Purpose of the Governance Framework 
The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, culture and 
values, by which the authority is directed and controlled, together with those 
activities through which it accounts to, engages with and leads the local community. 
It enables the authority to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to 
consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate cost 
effective services. 
 
The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed 
to manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve 
policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not 
absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an 
ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of 
North East Derbyshire District Councilôs policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate 
the likelihood and potential impact of those risks being realised, and to manage 
them efficiently, effectively and economically. 
 
The governance framework has been in place at North East Derbyshire throughout 
the year ended 31 March 2016 and up to the date of the approval of the Statement 
of Accounts.   
 
 

http://www.ne-derbyshire.gov.uk/
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The Governance Framework 
 

The key components of the systems and processes that comprise the authorityôs 
governance arrangements include the following: 
 
North East Derbyshire District Council sets out its objectives within its Corporate 
Plan which is linked to both the Community Strategy, and to a range of other 
supporting Strategies and Plans.  
 
North East Derbyshire District Council has a formal constitution in place which sets 
out the roles and responsibilities of both Members and Senior Managers. The 
Constitution is available on the Councilôs website and is reviewed on an on-going 
basis. Policy and decision making is by means of a Cabinet Structure with Cabinet 
Member Portfolio holders. There are 4 Scrutiny Committees one of which is the 
Audit and Corporate Governance Committee which provides independent challenge 
and assurance regarding financial governance and risk management.  The Council 
also has a Standards Committee which has responsibility for overseeing the 
operation of the Members Code of Conduct.  
 
North East Derbyshire takes a number of steps to help ensure compliance with 
established policies, procedures, laws and regulations. There is a corporate 
induction process, with a range of awareness raising and training events being 
provided for both employees and Members. All staff have access to the key policies 
and procedures which are readily accessible on the intranet site. Formal Codes of 
Conduct are in operation for both Members and Officers. The Council has adopted 
a formal Anti Fraud and Corruption Policy characterised by zero tolerance, with this 
approach informing the Councilôs governance and internal control arrangements. To 
support these high standards of openness and probity the Council has in place an 
effective complaints policy and procedures, an anti-fraud strategy, and a whistle 
blowing policy.  
 
The District Council has a Risk Management Strategy and associated framework in 
place, which is reviewed on a regular basis. The Portfolio Member for Economy and 
Finance is the Member Champion, with independent assurance provided on an 
ongoing basis by the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee. The Council has 
embedded Risk Management by ensuring the provision of appropriate training, by 
regular reviews of the Strategic Risk Register, by incorporating the Service Risk 
Registers within the Service Planning process, and by requiring that all Committee 
Reports include a Risk assessment with all projects having a Project Risk Register. 
The Risk Management Framework includes quarterly reporting which is integrated 
with our Performance and Financial management arrangements.  
 
North East Derbyshire District Council has a number of mechanisms in place for 
ensuring the economical, effective and efficient use of resources, and to ensure that 
we secure continuous improvement in the manner in which our functions are 
exercised in order to comply with the requirement to provide best value. Effective 
use of resources is ensured by a robust range of mechanisms including 
consultation with local residents and other stakeholders, a well developed corporate 
and service planning process, by the careful consideration of service performance 
and development in order to ensure that our services are targeted at addressing 
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priority requirements. Economy and Efficiency are ensured by the adoption of good 
procurement practice, and by services which are responsive to customer 
requirements and operated in line with good practice.  
 
A Scheme of Delegation sets out the powers of Senior Officers and Members, 
including that of the Councilôs statutory officers while the Financial Regulations and 
Contract Procedure Rules form an integral part of the Constitution.  The 
performance against budget is monitored on an ongoing basis with cost centre 
managers having access to the financial ledger, and the accountancy team 
providing monitoring reports on a monthly basis. This is intended to ensure that any 
significant budget variances are identified at the earliest opportunity. Formal 
monitoring reports are taken to Cabinet and to the Audit and Corporate Governance 
Committee on a quarterly basis. 
 
Performance Management is at the core of our managerial arrangements with 
quarterly reports being provided to Cabinet. The Council monitors progress against 
a range of performance targets which incorporate both national and local priorities. 
The quality of the data which underpins the Councilôs performance management 
framework is independently assured by Internal Audit. Performance Targets 
together with key operational priorities are set out within the Corporate Performance 
Management Framework and supporting Service Plans.  These in turn are linked to 
the Councilôs Corporate Plan and supporting Plans and Strategies in order to help 
ensure that our resources are utilised for the achievement of agreed priorities.  
 
The District Council contributes to the delivery of the Community Strategy for our 
residents through the Corporate Plan and the range of associated Plans and 
Strategies. The Council updates its Strategic Service Planning Framework on a 
regular basis and reports publicly to ensure our residents are kept informed 
regarding the progress on those issues which they view to be critical to the 
wellbeing of our community. Reports which are available to residents include 
Cabinet and Scrutiny Papers which are available on the website, articles in the 
Councilôs newsletter óThe Newsô which is distributed three times a year, briefings to 
the local press, public consultation meetings and through the Citizens Panel. 
Progress against the Councilôs key priorities is reported to Cabinet on a quarterly 
basis as part of the suite of Performance reports.  
 
The District Council, working with our local community and key partners has agreed 
a vision and core values which are supported by a range of 4 corporate priorities 
which were set out within the Councilôs Corporate Plan for 2015 to 2019 as follows: 
 

¶ Unlocking our Growth Potential; 

¶ Supporting our Communities to be Healthier, Safer, Cleaner and Greener; 

¶ Providing our Customers with Excellent Services ; 

¶ Transforming our Organisation 
 

These priorities provide a focus for the development of partnership working, delivery 
of our services, and for planned improvements and rationalisation of the services 
which are currently provided. The emphasis on progressing these priorities is 
illustrated by the fact that all reports to Committee set out which of the Corporate 
Priorities they are seeking to promote, while the Council undertakes an ongoing  
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review of its services through the service planning process and by the review 
processes which include Performance Management by Cabinet and the work of the 
Scrutiny function.  
 
Review of Effectiveness 
 
North East Derbyshire District Council has responsibility for conducting on at least 
an annual basis a review of the effectiveness of its governance framework including 
the system of internal control. This helps validate that our Governance Framework 
has ensured compliance with the law, identifies that policies and procedures are 
effective and expenditure is lawful. The review of effectiveness is informed by the 
work of the Directors and Senior Managers within the authority who have 
responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance 
environment, the annual report of the Head of the Internal Audit Consortium, and 
also by the conclusions and recommendations made by the external auditors, and 
other review agencies and inspectorates.  
 
The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for ensuring that there is an adequate and 
effective system of internal control of both the Councilôs accounting and its other 
systems of internal control as required by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. 
As required by the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in 
Local Government (2016) the Chief Financial Officer is professionally qualified, 
reports directly to the Chief Executive, is a full member of the Corporate 
Management Team and is supported by appropriately qualified and experienced 
staff.  
 
The arrangements for the provision of internal audit are set out within the Councilôs 
Financial Regulations which are part of the Councilôs Constitution. The internal audit 
provision has from the 1st April 2007 been independently managed by the Internal 
Audit Consortium Manager. This is an arrangement for the provision of Internal 
Audit on a consortium basis by Bolsover, Chesterfield and North East Derbyshire, 
with the service being hosted by Chesterfield Borough Council on behalf of the 
three authorities. The work to be undertaken is formally agreed within the Audit 
Plan. This Audit Plan is prepared by the Internal Audit Consortium Manager and is 
prioritised in order to reflect the key internal controls, assessment and review on the 
basis of risk and the Councilôs corporate governance arrangements, including risk 
management. The Councilôs Internal Audit function has been internally assessed as 
being compliant with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) which 
came into effect on 1st April 2013 replacing the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal 
Audit in Local Government 2006.The Council operates its internal audit 
arrangements in line with the requirements set out within the CIPFA Statement on 
the Role of the Head of Internal Audit. The Internal Audit Consortium Manager is 
professionally qualified, suitably experienced, reports on a regular basis to the Audit 
Committee, with unrestricted access to elected members and management.   Audit 
work involves reviews of the main financial systems, scheduled visits to Council 
establishments and fraud investigations. The resulting work plan is discussed and 
agreed with the Councilôs Section 151 officer, and with the Audit Committee. It is 
also shared with KPMG the Councilôs external auditor. This is part of a process of 
liaison intended to ensure that the work of internal and external audit is 
complementary and that duplication is avoided. The Internal Audit reports which  
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arise out of the process include an assessment of the adequacy of internal control, 
and set out recommendations which are aimed to address those areas where 
potential improvements have been identified. These are submitted to the relevant 
officers within the Council who are required to implement any accepted 
recommendations. The outcome of the process is reviewed by the Chief Financial 
Officer, by the Councilôs Corporate Management Team and by the Audit and 
Corporate Governance Committee. 
 
The Councilôs review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is 
informed by: 
 

¶ There is a Constitution in place which provides a formal Governance 
framework, with decisions taken in an open and accountable fashion. 
Internally, those decisions are subject to Scrutiny, and the Council has an 
active Standards Committee; 

¶ The Council has suitably qualified, trained and experienced officers 
undertaking the statutory roles of Head of Paid service (Chief Executive), 
Monitoring Officer and Section 151 Officer. 

¶ Assurances from the responsible Executive Directors based on management 
and performance information, officer assurance statements, Scrutiny reports 
and the outcome of internal reviews including those looking at joint services.  

¶ The work undertaken by the Internal Audit Consortium during the course of 
the year; 

¶ The work undertaken by the External Auditor as reported in their Annual 
Audit Letter and in the Report to those charged with Governance (ISA 260); 

¶ This Annual Governance Statement has reviewed the operation of our 
Governance arrangements during the course of the 2015/16 financial year. In 
developing this Statement Officers have assessed the Councilôs 
arrangements against good practice. 

¶ The Councilôs Audit Committee has undertaken a structured self assessment 
to ensure it operates in line with CIPFA / SOLACE guidance. 

¶ In addition to assessing its own internal control mechanisms the Council has 
needed to assess the extent to which reliance can be placed upon the 
systems of Internal Control established and maintained by Rykneld Homes 
itôs Arms Length Management Organisation for its housing stock. On the 
basis of the companyôs formal commitment to good governance, reports of 
external and internal audit, IIP accreditation and the on-going partnership 
between the Council and Rykneld Homes to manage performance and 
outcomes on behalf of tenants, the Council has come to the view that there 
are no significant governance issues in respect of Rykneld Homes. The 
company was subject to an independent assessment by the Audit 
Commission in the February of 2010 which concluded that it was performing 
at a two star level with promising prospects for improvement. Rykneld Homes   
secured the full allocation of Decent Homes funding (ending in 2014/15) from 
the Homes and Communities Agency, with the continuation of such funding 
having been secured on the basis of its effective performance as a Housing 
Management organisation. Further capital funding has continued to be 
received by Rykneld Homes from the Homes and Communities Agency  
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during 2015/16 which is an indication they are viewed as an organisation 
which is performing well.  

¶ While Rykneld Homes constitutes the Councilôs most significant partnership 
we actively participate in both the Sheffield City Region and in the North 
Midlands local economic partnerships. At a meeting of Council held on 2nd 
March 2016 it was agreed that the authority would seek to be a constituent 
member of the proposed North Midlands combined authority and non 
constituent member of the Sheffield City Region Combined Authority. Our 
managerial and service delivery arrangements are dependent upon effective 
partnership working with Bolsover District Council (our Strategic Alliance 
Partner), while we work with Chesterfield Borough Council, Derbyshire Dales 
District Council and the Chesterfield Royal Hospital in the delivery of shared 
services. There are also a number of other arrangements with local 
organisations including a Derbyshire County Council and local Health bodies 
which support the Community Safety Team, Supporting People and Active 
and Healthy lifestyles where partnership working supports the delivery of 
services to local residents. Where the Council has entered into partnership 
arrangements it seeks to ensure that these promote the Councilôs vision and 
core values and that they are subject to appropriate governance and 
performance management arrangements. This assurance is provided by 
ensuring that the Councilôs involvement within partnership is formally agreed 
by Council and that the outcomes of partnership working are detailed in the 
Councilôs Performance, Finance and Risk Management Framework. 

¶ With effect from April 2011 the Council has operated within a Strategic 
Alliance with a neighbouring authority Bolsover District Council. Joint working 
arrangements have made significant progress and the two Councilôs now 
operate with a joint Management team down to third tier level. Joint working 
is now operational within most services, although only Environmental Health 
is operating on the basis of a fully shared service. While one of the key 
reasons for entering into this partnership is to achieve the efficiency savings 
that both Councilôs need to secure, the Strategic Alliance is also seen as a 
key mechanism for managing risk including the maintenance of robust 
Internal Control arrangements.  

 
The Councilôs External Auditors KPMG restrict their comments to the Published 
Accounts and as to whether the Council has made proper arrangements to secure 
Value for Money. The most recent review of the Council by external audit was 
provided by KPMG in its Annual Audit Letter relating to the 2014/15 Accounts. This 
letter which was reported to the Council meeting on 4th January 2016 gave an 
unqualified opinion in respect of both Value for Money and in respect of the 
published accounts. With respect to the outcomes of the independent scrutiny 
undertaken by Internal Audit of the twenty five audits undertaken during 2015/16, 
one resulted in an outcome of unsatisfactory (unacceptable risks identified, changes 
should be made), with three resulting in a arrangement being assessed as marginal 
(a number of areas identified for improvement).   
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Significant Governance Issues 
 
In the light of the above evidence it would seem reasonable to conclude that the 
Council has a robust system of internal control in place that has operated 
throughout the 2015/16 financial year. As part of the Annual Governance 
Statement, however, the Council is required to review its internal controls in order to 
identify those significant areas where it needs to improve its governance, 
performance and the management of services. A consideration of the reports raised 
by External Inspections, Peer Reviews and the Councilôs own self assessment of its 
current position in respect of those areas requiring improvement are as follows: 
 
At a Strategic Level the key issue for the Council is that since 2008/09 the 
underlying financial pressures have increased significantly as the level of Central 
Government funding has been reduced. In response the Council has been required 
to identify and achieve significant ongoing efficiency savings. Given that the Council 
operates with a level of financial reserves just above minimum levels it is critical that 
the Council takes effective action to address any in year financial shortfalls. While 
the budget in respect of 2016/17 requires savings of some £0.4m to be achieved 
measures have been agreed and the Council is actively working to secure these 
savings. The Council needs, however, to identify further cumulative savings in the 
order of £1.6m over the following two financial years in order to continue operating 
within the level of underlying financial resources. Financial pressures to date have 
resulted in a reduction in the staffing establishment in excess of 20%. These 
reductions in staffing numbers together with the loss of expertise, and the 
requirement to reorganise processes and procedures does have the potential to 
impact significantly on the internal control environment.  While staffing numbers and 
the availability of financial resources have reduced the Council continues to be 
required to implement and manage significant changes including measures to 
achieve cost saving, to promote growth and to ensure effective partnership working. 
In addition there are a range of issues external to the Council including legislative 
change together with the impact of the referendum vote to leave the European 
Union which create uncertainties and may impact at some further stage upon the 
Council. The Council is aware of these risks and is seeking to manage them 
appropriately. Given the scale of the efficiencies that have been necessary the 
internal control environment, levels of performance and service delivery more 
generally will continue to require careful monitoring during the course of the current 
financial year. The Council, does, however, have in place an experienced and 
appropriately qualified management team which puts it in a good place to secure an 
appropriate balance between securing financial savings whilst protecting both our 
governance arrangements and the level of service to local residents. 
 
In addition to the above strategic internal control issues there are a limited number 
of areas where the Council is currently marginal or at risk of not meeting the 
requirements of best practice. These issues are outlined below, and all of the areas 
identified for improvement are currently the subject of a Corporate Action Plan 
(including target dates), with progress against that Action Plan being reported as a 
standing item to the Councilôs Audit and Corporate Governance Committee.  
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 Issue Identified Action to Address 

1. Although the Councilôs budget 
is balanced over the period of 
the Medium Term Financial 
Plan that is on the basis of 
securing  significant efficiency 
savings. Many of these 
efficiencies require the active 
management of significant 
levels of change against a 
background of reducing 
staffing levels. If these 
efficiencies are not secured 
then the Council will be forced 
to reduce expenditure in a 
relatively uncontrolled fashion 
which will impact upon the 
quality of services to local 
residents, and potentially on 
the internal control 
environment. 
 

In setting its Medium Term Financial Plan 
the Council established a range of 
measures needed to deliver the efficiency 
gains necessary to operate within the 
underlying level of resources available to 
the Council. Achievement of these 
measures is monitored on a regular basis 
by Cabinet and the Audit Committee as 
part of the Councilôs Performance 
Management framework. While 
appropriate mechanisms are in place and 
have proved effective during previous 
financial years it needs to be recognized 
that the efficiency targets continue to be 
challenging and will require pro active 
management action. Officers are working 
towards a position where the 2016/17 
savings target will be achieved by 
September 2016. Ongoing work will, 
however, be necessary to identify options 
in respect of 2017/18 onwards. 
The Council has a realistic level of financial 
balances (General Fund £2m, HRA £2.8m) 
to assist in managing the position. 

2 With respect to the work 
undertaken by both External 
and Internal Audit there 
continues to be a limited 
number of areas identified 
where the Councilôs internal 
control arrangements require 
improvement.  These relate to 
particular areas and are not 
representative of the quality of 
the overall control 
environment. In particular it 
should be noted that none of 
the critical reports relate to the 
Councilôs Key Financial 
Systems. However, while in 
2014/15 the Council received 
only 2 critical internal audit 
reports, in 2015/16 that 
increased to four. The more 
serious of these are in respect 
of S106 arrangements and 
Health and Safety. 

In respect of our management and 
governance arrangements all identified 
issues are reported to the Audit and 
Corporate Governance Committee through 
the Key Issues of Financial Governance 
Action Plan which is a standing item on the 
agenda. Internal audit reports specify a 
time period for the implementation of 
agreed recommendations and progress 
against these recommendations is 
monitored as part of the Councilôs 
Performance Management Framework. 
This review and monitoring process will 
continue to address areas of identified 
weakness to ensure that they do not 
significantly impact upon the overall 
internal control environment.  
Progress in addressing these issues and in 
embedding improvement will be reported 
to the Audit Committee on a regular basis 
in order to ensure that the improved 
arrangements are continuing to operate 
effectively.   
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( 
A report in respect of the 
administration of S106 
concluded that arrangements 
were unsatisfactory. 
 

A comprehensive management review has 
confirmed that no funding has been lost, 
although receipt of funding may have been 
delayed by up to a year in a limited number 
of instances. Revised arrangements have 
been put in place which addresses the 
issues identified.  

 A report in respect of Health 
and Safety arrangements 
concluded that arrangements 
were marginal. 

To ensure that Health and Safety 
arrangements are robust an independent 
external review of arrangements has been 
commissioned which is currently 
underway. This review is in addition to the 
implementation of all Internal Audit 
recommendations. 

 The other two marginal 
Internal Audit reports 
concerned Recruitment and 
Selection and Management of 
Industrial Estates. 

In both of these areas management is in 
the process of implementing the Internal 
Audit recommendations. The 
implementation of the actions required will 
be monitored through the Councilôs 
Performance Management framework. 

 
We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to 
further enhance our governance arrangements. In particular we will take action to 
ensure that necessary improvements in our Internal Control arrangements are 
secured. We are satisfied that these steps will address the need for improvements 
that were identified in our review of effectiveness and will monitor their 
implementation and operation as part of our next annual review. 
 
Signed: 
 
 
 
 
  
Graham Baxter  Dan Swaine 
Leader of the Council Chief Executive 
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Accounting Policies and General Notes 
 
This section explains the accounting policies applied in producing the Statement of 
Accounts and identifies any notes that may be useful to the reader prior to reading 
the Financial Statements.  
 
1 General Principles 
 
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Councilôs transactions for the 2015/16 
financial year and its position at the year end of 31st March 2016. The Council is 
required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2011 which require them to be prepared in accordance with proper 
accounting practices.  These practices primarily consist of the Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16 supported by 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). 
 
The accounting convention adopted is historical cost, modified by the revaluation of 
certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments. 
 
The Council has followed the requirements of International Accounting Standard 
(IAS) 1 in preparing the Statement of Accounts.  Its objectives are to ensure that for 
all material items the Council: 
 

¶ Adopts accounting policies most appropriate to its particular circumstances 
for the purpose of giving a true and fair view; 

 

¶ Reviews the accounting policies regularly to ensure that they remain 
appropriate, and changes them when a new policy becomes more 
appropriate; 

 

¶ Ensures that sufficient information is disclosed in the financial statements to 
enable users to understand the accounting policies adopted and how they 
have been implemented. 

 
The general principles adopted in compiling the accounts are those set out by 
CIPFA in the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 
Kingdom, which is recognised by statute as representing proper accounting 
practice. In addition the Local Authority Accounting Panel Standards Committee 
periodically issue bulletins on accounting practice. These accounting policies 
conform with those principles, which are applicable to Local Authorities. 
 
2 Accounting Concepts 
 
The concepts used in selecting and applying the most appropriate policies and 
estimation techniques are as follows: 
 

¶ The qualitative characteristics of financial information ï relevance, reliability, 
comparability, and understanding; 
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¶ Materiality (all major transactions and events are included); 
 

¶ The accounting concepts of accruals, going concern and primacy of 
legislative requirements. 

 
3 Accruals of Income and Expenditure 
 
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash 
payments are made or received. In particular: 
 

¶ Revenue from fees, charges and rents due from customers are recognised 
when the Authority transfers the risk and rewards of ownership to the 
purchaser and it is probable that economic benefits or service potential 
associated with the transaction will flow to the Authority. 

 

¶ Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Authority can 
measure reliably the percentage of completion of the transaction and it is 
probable that economic benefits or service potential associated with the 
transaction will flow to the Authority.   
 

¶ Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed ï where 
there is a gap between the date supplies are received and their consumption, 
they are carried as inventories on the Balance Sheet; 

 

¶ Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by 
employees) are recorded as expenditure when the services are received 
rather than when payments are made. 
 

¶ Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted 
for in the year to which it relates and are based on an effective interest rate 
for the relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flow fixed or 
determined by the contract; 

 

¶ Where income and expenditure has been recognised but cash has not been 
received or paid a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in 
the Balance Sheet. Where it is doubtful that debts will be settled, the balance 
of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the income that 
might not be collected. 

 
An exception to this principle relates to electricity and other similar periodic 
payments which are charged at the date of meter reading rather than being 
apportioned between financial years. This policy is consistently applied each year 
and therefore does not have a material effect on the yearôs accounts. 
 
Income and expenditure are credited and debited to the relevant service revenue 
account, unless they properly represent capital receipts or capital expenditure. 
 
Grant claims are submitted on an actual basis wherever possible, however if the 
information to do this is not available then a best estimate basis is adopted. 
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4 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions 
repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents 
are short-term, highly liquid investments that mature within three months and are 
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an 
insignificant risk of change in value.   
 
In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank 
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Councilôs 
cash management. 
 
5 Charge to revenue for Non Current Assets 
 
Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following 
amounts to record the cost of holding non-current assets during the year. 
 
Å depreciation ï attributable to the assets used by the relevant service 
Å revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there 

are no accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which losses 
can be written off. 

Å amortisation of intangible assets attributable to the service. 
 
The Council is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and 
impairment losses or amortisation.  However, it is required to make an annual 
contribution from revenue towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement 
equal to an amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Council in 
accordance with statutory guidance.   Depreciation, revaluation and impairment 
losses and amortisation costs are therefore replaced by the contribution in the 
General Fund of a Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP), by way of an adjusting 
transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement for the difference between the two. 
 
The Councilôs policy for the calculation of the statutory provision for the repayment 
of debt is determined each year by the Council.  The Council has decided that for 
2015/16 the outstanding general fund debt prior to 1 April 2007 will be repaid at a 
rate of £200,000 per year until the debt is extinguished.  Any prudential borrowing 
for the General Fund is repaid based on the life of the asset. 
 
6  Collection Fund 
 
The transactions of the Collection Fund are wholly prescribed by legislation. Billing 
authorities have no discretion to determine which receipts and payments are 
accounted for within the fund and which outside.    
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NNDR - Impairment of Appeals 
Under the Business Rates Retention Scheme which came into effect on 1 April 
2013, local authorities are required to provide for the potential loss of business rates  
as a result of businesses successfully appealing against the rateable valuation of 
property occupied.  
 
The Council has commissioned an independent assessment at 31 March 2016 of 
the outstanding appeals lodged with the Valuation Office.  The assessment looks at 
every individual appeal and estimates of the likelihood of the appeal succeeding 
based on the category of appeal and previous appeal determinations. The results 
are reviewed by the Council for reasonableness and challenged as required.   
 
The rateable value and the period covered by the appeal has been used to 
establish a prudent provision to meet the estimated costs of successful appeals. 
The provision is met from the Collection Fund then the costs are shared between 
the members of the Derbyshire Business Rates Pool. 
 
7 Contingent Assets 
 
A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a 
possible asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or 
otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Authority.  
Contingent assets are not recognised in the accounting statements; they are 
disclosed by way of notes where it is probable that there will be an inflow of 
economic benefit or service potential. 
 
8 Contingent Liabilities 
 
A contingent liability arises when an event has taken place that gives the Authority a 
possible obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or 
otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Authority.  
Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise 
be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or 
the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably. Contingent Liabilities are 
not recognised in the accounting statements; but are disclosed in a note to the 
accounts. 
 
9 Doubtful Debts  
 
Provisions for doubtful debts are made to ensure that the Council can finance any 
sums due to the Council which are subsequently deemed to be irrecoverable after 
all recovery measures have been exhausted.  This sum is reduced annually by 
sums written off and increased by any contributions from the revenue account.  The 
provision is netted off against debtors in the Balance Sheet and not included in the 
provisions total. 
 
The provision for doubtful debts in respect of overdue council tax, housing benefit 
overpayments, rents and NNDR is calculated by category on a percentage basis 
based upon previous experience of the recovery of debts of that type.   
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The provision for other sundry debts is calculated by reference to the age of the 
debt involved, and the Councilôs previous experience of recovering such debt. 
 
10 Employee Benefits 
 
Benefits Payable during Employment  
 
Short term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the 
year end. They include such benefits as salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick 
leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current employees and 
are recognised as an expense for services in the year in which employees render 
service to the Council. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements 
earned by employees but not taken before the year-end but which can be carried 
forward into the next financial year. The accrual is made at the salary rates 
applicable in the following accounting year, as this is the period in which the 
employee takes the benefit. The accrual is charged to the relevant service area of 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, but then is reversed out 
through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that the annual leave is charged 
to revenue in the financial year in which the annual leave occurs.   
 
Termination Benefits 
 
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council 
to terminate an officerôs employment before the normal retirement date, or an 
officerôs decision to accept voluntary redundancy and are charged on an accruals 
basis to the appropriate service or, where applicable, to the Non Distributed Costs 
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement at the earlier of when 
the Council can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or when the Council 
recognises costs for a restructuring. 
 
Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory 
provisions require the General Fund balance to be charged with the amount 
payable by the Council to the Pension Fund or pensioner in year, not the amount 
calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in 
Reserves Statement appropriations are required to and from the Pensions Reserve 
to remove the notional debits and credits for pension enhancement termination 
benefits and replace them with accrued debits for the cash paid to the Pension 
Fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year end. 
 
Post Employment Benefits 
 
Employees of the Council are members of the Local Government Pension Scheme 
administered on behalf of the Council by Derbyshire County Council.  The scheme 
provides defined benefits to members (lump sums and pensions) earned as 
employees working for the Council. 
 
 
 
 
 



ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

North East Derbyshire District Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
30 

 

 
 
The Local Government Pension Scheme 
 
The Local Government Pension Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefit 
scheme: 
 

¶ The liabilities of the Derbyshire County Council Pension fund attributable to 
the Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the  
 
projected unit method ï i.e. an assessment of future payments that will be 
made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based 
on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc, and 
projected earnings for current employees. 

 

¶ Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices using a discount 
rate. 

 

¶ The assets of the Derbyshire County Council Pension fund attributable to the 
Council are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value: 

 
Å quoted securities ï current bid price; 
Å unquoted securities ï professional estimate; 
Å unitised securities ï average of the bid and offer rates; 
Å property ï market value. 

 
The change in the net pensionôs liability is analysed into the following components: 
 
Å Current Service Cost - the increase in liabilities as result of years of service 

earned this year. This is allocated in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement to the services for which the employees worked. 

 
Å Past Service Cost - the increase in liabilities arising as a result of a scheme 

amendment or curtailment whose effect relates to years of service earned in 
earlier years. These costs are debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement, as part of Non Distributed Costs.   

 
Å Interest Costs - the expected increase in the present value of liabilities during 

the year as they move one year closer to being paid. The cost is debited to 
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  

 
Remeasurements ï comprising: 
 
Å The Return on Plan Assets ï excluding amounts included in net interest on 

the net defined benefit liability (asset) ï charged to the Pension Reserve as 
Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.  

 
Å  
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¶ Actuarial Gains and Losses ï change in the net pension liability that arise 
because events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last 
actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have updated their assumptions 
- debited to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure. 

 

¶ Contributions paid to the County Pension Fund ï cash paid as employerôs 
contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for 
as an expense. 

 
In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund 
balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund 
or directly to pensioners in the year, not the amount calculated according to the 
relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means 
that there are transfers to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional 
debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash 
paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid 
at the year end. The negative balance that arises on the Pension Reserve therefore 
measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to account for 
retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows, rather than as benefits are earned by 
employees.  
 
Discretionary Benefits 
 
The Council has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement 
benefits in the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a 
result of an award to any member of staff are accrued in the year of decision to 
make the award and accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the 
Local Government Pension Scheme. 
 
11 Events after the Reporting Period 
 
Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and 
unfavourable, that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when 
the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue. Two types of events can be 
identified: 
 
Å Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the 

reporting period ï the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such 
events. 

 
Å Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period ï 

the Statement of Accounts are not adjusted to reflect such events, but where 
a category of events would have a material effect, disclosure is made in the 
notes of the nature of the events and their estimated financial impact. 

 
Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the 
Statement of Accounts. 
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12 Exceptional Items  
 
Exceptional items are included in the cost of the service to which they relate or on 
the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement if that degree of 
prominence is necessary in order to give a fair presentation of the accounts. An 
adequate description of each exceptional item is given within the notes to the 
accounts. 
 
13 Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and 

Estimates and Errors  
 
Prior period adjustments may arise as a result in a change of accounting policies or 
to correct a material error.  Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for 
prospectively, i.e. in the current and future years affected and do not give rise to a 
prior period adjustment.   
 
Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting 
practices or the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the 
effect of transactions, other events and conditions on the Authorityôs financial 
position or financial performance.  Where a change is made it is applied 
retrospectively by adjusting the opening balances and comparative amounts for the 
prior period as if the new policy had always been applied. 
 
Material errors discovered in the prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by 
amending opening balances and comparative amounts for the period. 
 
14 Financial Instruments 
 
The Council is required to recognise, measure, present and disclose information 
about any financial instruments. A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise 
to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability of another. Typical financial 
assets include bank deposits, trade receivables and other receivables, loans 
receivable and advances.  Typical financial liabilities include trade payables and 
other payables, borrowings and financial guarantees. 
 
Financial Liabilities 
 
Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes 
a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially 
measured at fair value and carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest payable are based 
on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for 
the instrument. For most of the borrowings that the Council has, this means that the 
amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus 
accrued interest) and interest charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for the year in the loan agreement. 
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Financial Liabilities held by the Council 
 
Å Borrowings (PWLB loans, temporary borrowing, cash overdrawn); 
Å Trade and Other Payables (creditors and receipts in advance). 
 
Financial Assets  
 
Financial Assets are classified into two types: 
 
Loans and receivables ï assets that have fixed or determinable payments but are 
not quoted in an active market. 
 
Available for Sale Assets ï assets that have a quoted market price and have/or do 
not have fixed or determinable payments. 
 
Loans and receivables 
 
Loans and receivables are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are 
initially measured at fair value and carried at their amortised cost. Annual credits to 
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on the carrying 
amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For 
most of the loans that the Council has made, this means that the amount presented 
in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest)  
and interest credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is 
the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement.  
 
The Council has made a small number of loans at less than market rates (soft 
loans). The interest cost of these soft loans is deemed to be immaterial and 
therefore no adjustments have been made. 
 
Where Financial Assets are identified as impaired because the likelihood arising 
from past event that payments due under the contract will not be made, the financial 
asset is written down and a charge made to the relevant service or the Financing 
and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement.  The impairment loss is measured as the difference 
between the carrying amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows 
discounted at the financial assets original effective interest rate. 
 
Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of a financial asset are 
credited or debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
Financial Assets held by the Council ï Loans and receivables 
Å Bank deposits (cash balances); 
Å Trade receivables (debtors); 
Å Loans receivable (council house mortgages, car loans to employees); 
Å Investments (overnight investments, temporary investments); 
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Available for Sale Assets  
 
The Council does not hold any Available for Sale assets 
 
15 Government Grants and Contributions 
 
Whether paid on account , by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third 
party contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there 
is reasonable assurance that: - 
 
Å The Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and 
Å The grants or contributions will be received. 
 
Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or 
contribution have been satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the 
future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset acquired using 
the grant or contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified, 
or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor. 
 
Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been 
satisfied are carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are 
satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant service line or Taxation 
and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ring fenced revenue grants and all capital 
grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  
 
Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement, they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement. Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital 
expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve. Where it has been 
applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital 
Grants Unapplied reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once 
they have been applied to fund capital expenditure. 
 
16 Heritage Assets 
 
Heritage assets are a distinct class of asset which are reported separately from 
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.   
 
Recognition 
 
Heritage assets are classed as ña tangible asset with historical, artistic, scientific, 
technological, geophysical or environmental qualities that is held and maintained 
principally for its contribution to knowledge or cultureò or ñan intangible asset with 
cultural, environmental or historical significanceò. A general de-minimis limit of 
£10,000 is applied to all fixed assets. 
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Measurement 
 
Only heritage assets that have a cost or value available are required to be entered 
into the Balance Sheet. Where information on the cost or value is not available and 
the cost of obtaining the information outweighs the benefits to the user of the 
statements, the code does not require that the asset is recognised in the Balance 
Sheet, although appropriate disclosure is needed where heritage assets are not 
recognised in the Balance Sheet. 
 
Unlike other assets, a full valuation every five years is not required. Valuations can 
be done whenever the Council requires. The valuations may be made by any 
method that is appropriate and relevant, this may include insurance valuations.  
 
However, the code does require that authorities review the carrying amounts of 
heritage assets with sufficient regularity to ensure they remain current. Because of 
this the Council has determined that a five year review will be carried out. 
 
Impairment 
 
Impairment reviews are only required in limited circumstances. However, the 
Council has determined that a five year review will be carried out. An immediate 
review will need to be carried out where an asset has suffered physical deterioration 
or breakage of a heritage asset; or where new doubts arise as to the authenticity of 
a heritage asset. 
 
Where impairment is identified as part of this review and it is deemed material, or as 
a result of a valuation exercise, this is accounted for by: 
 

¶ Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation 
Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that 
balance (up to the accumulated gains). 

 

¶ Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient 
balance, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against the 
relevant service lines in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. 

 
Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the 
relevant service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up 
to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been 
charged if the loss had not been recognised. 
 
Depreciation 
 
Depreciation is provided for on some heritage assets, ones with a definite life, by 
the systematic allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives.  
 

¶ Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line allocation over the useful life of 
the asset. 
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For any heritage assets with indefinite lives no depreciation is required. 
 
Revaluation gains are also depreciated, where applicable, with an amount equal to 
the difference between the current value depreciation charged on assets and the 
depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their historic cost being 
transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment 
Account. 
 
Disposals 
 
When it becomes probable that an asset is to be sold it is reclassified as an Asset 
Held for Sale.  The asset is revalued before reclassification and then carried at the 
lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell.  Where there is a subsequent 
decrease to the fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the Other 
Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement.  Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any 
previous losses recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services.  
Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale. 
 
If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classed as Assets Held for Sale, they are 
reclassified back to non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying 
amount before they were classified as assets held for sale.  They are adjusted for 
depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised had 
they not been classified as Held for Sale. 
 
Assets that are abandoned or scrapped are not classified as Assets Held for Sale. 
 
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the value of the asset in the 
Balance Sheet is written off to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposal are 
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the 
gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the 
time of disposal). Any revaluation gains in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred 
to the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 
Amounts received from disposal proceeds in excess of £10,000 are categorised as 
capital receipts. The balance of receipts is credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve 
and can only be used either to finance new capital investment or set aside to 
reduce the Councilôs underlying need to borrow. Receipts are appropriated to the 
Reserve from the Movement on Reserves Statement. 
 
The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of 
fixed assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. 
Amounts are appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General 
Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
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17 Intangible Fixed Assets 
 
Expenditure on assets that do not have a physical substance but are identifiable 
and controlled by the Council (for example computer software) are capitalised when 
it is expected that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the 
intangible asset to the Council.   
 
Intangible Assets are initially measured at cost.  Amounts are only re-valued where 
the fair value of the assets held by the Council can be determined by reference to 
an active market.  In practice no intangible asset, held by the Council, meets this 
criterion and they are therefore carried at amortised cost.  
 
The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is amortised over its useful life to the 
relevant service lines in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
Each intangible asset is tested for impairment each year to see if there is an 
indication that the asset might be impaired; any losses recognised are posted to the 
relevant service lines in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  
Any gain or loss arising from the disposal of an intangible fixed asset is posted to 
the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. 
 
Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory 
purposes, amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains or losses are not 
permitted to have an impact on the General Fund Balance.  The gains and losses 
are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for sale 
proceeds above £10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve. 
 
18 Interests in Companies and Other Entities 
 
The Council has a material interest in Rykneld Homes Limited, a company limited 
by guarantee, which is an Arms Length Management Organisation (ALMO).  
 
The ALMO is a wholly owned subsidiary, which was formed on 1 April 2007 and as 
a result the Council are required to prepare Group Accounts. In the Councilôs own 
single-entity accounts, the interests in companies and other entities are recorded as 
investments, i.e. at cost, less any provision for losses. 
 
19 Inventories   
 
Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable 
value. 
 
20 Investment Property 
 
Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for 
capital appreciation. The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to 
facilitate the delivery of service or production of goods or is held for sale. 
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Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, 
based on the amount at which the asset could be exchanged between 
knowledgeable parties at armôs-length. Properties are not depreciated but are re-
valued according to market conditions at the year end. Gains and losses on 
revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The same treatment 
is applied to gains and losses on disposal. 
 
Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing 
and Investment Income and Expenditure line and result in a gain for the General 
Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not 
permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the General Fund 
Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund 
Balance in the Movement on Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital 
Adjustment Account and (for sale proceeds above £10,000) the Capital Receipts 
Reserve. 
 
21 Jointly Controlled Operations and Jointly Controlled Assets 
 
Jointly controlled operations are activities undertaken by the Council in conjunction 
with other venturesô that involve the use of assets and resources of the venturesô 
rather than the establishment of a separate entity.  The Council recognises on its 
Balance Sheet the assets that it controls and the liabilities it incurs and debits and 
credits the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement with the share of 
expenditure it incurs and the share of income it earns from the operation.   
 
Jointly controlled assets are items of property, plant and equipment that are jointly 
controlled by the Authority and other venturesô, with the assets being used to obtain 
benefits for the venturesô.  The joint venture does not involve the establishment of a 
separate entity.  The Authority accounts for only its share of the jointly controlled 
assets, the liabilities and expenses it incurs on its own behalf or jointly with others in 
respect of its interest in the joint venture and income that it earns from the venture.  
 
The Council has the following jointly controlled operations: 
 
Building Control - with Bolsover District Council and Chesterfield Borough Council 
 
Internal Audit Services - with Bolsover District Council and Chesterfield Borough 
Council, and Derbyshire Dales District Council 
 
Procurement Services - with Bolsover District Council, Chesterfield Borough 
Council, Derbyshire Dales District Council and Chesterfield Royal Hospital 
 
ICT Services ï with Bolsover District Council and Derbyshire Dales District Council 
 
Environmental Health Services ï with Bolsover District Council 
 
The Council does have jointly controlled assets with Chesterfield Borough Council 
and Bolsover District Council regarding the operation of a crematorium. The 
Councilôs share of the crematoriumôs assets and income and expenditure for  
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2015/16 is 30%, (2014/15, 30%). On the basis of materiality, the Council does not 
include any figures for the joint crematorium within the Statement of Accounts. 
 
22 Leases 
 
The Council accounts for leases as finance leases where the terms of the lease 
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the 
property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee (the Council).  All other 
leases are classified as operating leases. 
 
Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are 
considered separately for classification. 
 
Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey the right to 
use an asset in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where 
fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of specific assets. 
 
The Council as Lessee 
 
Finance Leases 
 
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are recognised on the 
Balance Sheet at the commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the 
lease inception.  The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation to 
pay the lessor.   
 
Lease payments are apportioned between: 
 
Å A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment 

and applied to write down the lease liability;  
Å A finance charge (debited to the Finance and Investment Income and 

Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
Property, plant and equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for 
using the policies applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being 
charged over the lease term if this is shorter than the assets estimated useful life 
(where ownership of the asset does not transfer to the Council at the end of the 
lease period). 
 
The Council is not required to raise Council Tax to cover depreciation or revaluation 
and impairment losses arising on leased assets.  Instead a prudent annual 
contribution is made from revenue funds towards the deemed capital investment in 
accordance with statutory requirements.  Depreciation and revaluation and 
impairment losses are therefore substituted by a revenue contribution in the 
General Fund balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital 
Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference 
between the two. 
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Operating Leases 
 
The Council also has operating leases where the risk and rewards relating to the 
leased property remains with the lessor. Rentals payable are charged to the 
relevant service revenue account on a straight line basis over the term of the lease, 
generally meaning that rentals are charged when they become payable. 
 
The Council as Lessor 
 
Finance Leases 
 
Where the Council grants a finance lease over a property the relevant asset is 
written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal.  It is written off to the Other 
Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement as part of a gain or loss on disposal. 
 
Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between: 
 
Å A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property ï applied to write 

down the lease debtor (together with any premiums received); and  
Å Finance income credited to the Financing and Investment Income and 

Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on 
disposal is not permitted by statute to increase the General Fund balance and is 
required to be treated as a capital receipt. 
 
The Council currently has no finance leases for property where this policy applies. 
 
Operating Leases 
 
Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property the asset is retained in 
the Balance Sheet.  Rental income is credited to the Other Operating Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  Credits 
are made on a straight line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not 
match the pattern of payments e.g. there is a premium paid at the start of the lease. 
Initial and direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging the lease are added to 
the carrying amount of the asset and charged as an expense over the lease term.   
 
23 Overheads and Support Services 
 
The costs of overheads and support services are charged to those services that 
benefit from the supply or service in accordance with the costing principles of the 
CIPFA Service Reporting Code of Practice 2015/16 (SeRCOP). The total 
absorption costing principle is used ï the full cost of overheads and support 
services are shared between users in proportion to the benefits received, with the 
exception of: 
 
Å Corporate and Democratic Core ï costs relating to the Councilôs status as a 

multi-functional democratic organisation; 
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¶ Non-Distributed Costs ï the cost of discretionary benefits awarded to 
employees retiring early and any depreciation and impairment losses 
chargeable on non-operational properties.  

 
These two cost categories are accounted for as a separate heading in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the Net Expenditure 
on Continuing Services. 
 
24 Property, Plant and Equipment 
 
Property, Plant and Equipment are non-current assets that have physical substance 
are held for use in the provision of services, for rental to others, or for administrative 
purposes and are expected to be used during more than one financial year.  
 
Recognition 
 
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of tangible fixed assets is 
capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it yields benefits to the Council and 
the services that it provides is for more than one financial year. Expenditure that 
secures but does not extend the previously assessed standards of performance of 
the asset (e.g. repairs and maintenance) is charged to revenue as it is incurred. A 
general de-minimis limit of £10,000 is applied to non-current assets. 
 
Measurement 
 
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising the purchase price and any costs 
directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for 
it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.  
 
The Council does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under 
construction. 
 
The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its current 
value, unless the acquisition does not have commercial substance (i.e. it will not 
lead to a variation in the cash flows of the Council).  If an asset is acquired via an 
exchange the cost of acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset exchanged by 
the Council. 
 
Donated assets are measured at current value.  The difference between current 
value and the consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Non Specific Grant 
income line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, unless the 
donated asset has been made conditionally.  Until all conditions are met the gain is 
held in the Donated Assets Account.  Gains that are credited to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement are reversed out of the General Fund balance 
to the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
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Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement 
bases: 
 
Å Infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction ï 

depreciated historical cost; 
Å Dwellings ï current value, determined using the basis of existing use for 

social housing; 
Å Surplus Assets ï fair value, estimated at the highest and best use from a 

market participantôs perspective; 
Å All other assets ï fair value, determined as the amount that would be paid for 

the asset in its existing use. 
 
Where there is no market based evidence for the current value of an asset because 
of the specialist nature of an asset, depreciated replacement cost (DRC) is used as 
an estimate of current value. 
 
Where non property assets that have short useful lives or low values (or both), 
depreciated historical cost basis is used as a proxy for current value.  
 
Assets included in the Balance Sheet at current value are re-valued where there 
have been material changes in the value, but as a minimum every five years. 
Valuations are undertaken by a professionally qualified valuer.  Increases in 
valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise 
unrealised gains.  
 
Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for as follows: 
 
Å Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation 

Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that 
balance, up to the value of the accumulated gains; 

 
Å Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient 

balance, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against the 
relevant service lines in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement.  

 
The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since April 2007, 
the date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been 
consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 
Impairment 
 
At the end of each reporting period an assessment is made of whether there is any 
indication that an asset may be impaired.  If there is an indication of impairment, 
and it is deemed material. The recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to 
determine the impairment loss.   
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Where impairment losses are identified they are accounted for as follows: 
 

¶ Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation 
Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that 
balance, up to the value of accumulated gains; 

 

¶ Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient 
balance, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against the 
relevant service lines in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. 

 
Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the 
relevant service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up 
to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been 
charged if the loss had not been recognised. 
 
Depreciation 
 
Depreciation is provided for on all property, plant and equipment assets by the 
systematic allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An 
exception for assets without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land) and 
assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction). 
 
Depreciation is calculated on the following bases: - 
 

¶ Land ï Not depreciated 

¶ Dwellings and other buildings ï straight-line allocation over the useful life of 
the property as estimated by the valuer. 

¶ Infrastructure Assets - Straight-line allocation over life of asset 
 

¶ Vehicles, plant furniture and equipment ï straight-line allocation over the 
useful life of the asset. 

¶ Community assets ï are not depreciated. 

¶ Council Dwellings ï Straight Line allocation over the life of the property (also, 
subject to componentisation) 

 
Items of property, plant and equipment are not depreciated until they become 
available for use (i.e. when the asset is in the location and condition necessary for it 
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management). Depreciation 
ceases at the earlier of the date that items of property, plant and equipment are 
classified as held for sale and the date they are derecognised. 
 
Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference 
between current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that 
would have been chargeable, based on their historical cost being transferred each 
year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 
Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment exceed £1m in value and has 
major components whose costs are significant in relation to the total cost of the  



ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

North East Derbyshire District Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
44 

 

 
item, the components are depreciated separately.  The Council deems ñsignificantò 
to be 25% or more of the total cost of the asset. The Council also applies the 
following de minimis levels with regard to component accounting. 
 
Components are not separately identified where: 
 
Å The useful life of the asset is less than 10 years 
Å The depreciation charge based on the life of the component would differ from 

that for the total asset by less than £10,000. 
Å The component life must be materially different to the main asset to be 

treated as a component. 
 
For grouped assets such as Council Dwellings a practical level of componentisation 
has been applied which links to the work programmes carried out within capital 
programme.  An appropriate life has been assigned to each of these components.    
 
Disposals 
 
When it becomes probable that an asset is to be sold it is reclassified as an Asset 
Held for Sale.  The asset is re-valued before reclassification at its existing use value 
then carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell.  Where 
there is a subsequent decrease to the fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted 
to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement.  Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of  
any previous losses recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services.  
Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale. 
 
To be classified as an asset held for sale an asset must meet the following criteria: 
 

¶ The asset must be available for immediate sale in its present condition 
subject to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such assets; 

¶ The sale must be highly probable, the appropriate level of management must 
be committed to a plan to sell the asset and an active programme to locate a 
buyer and complete the plan must have been initiated; 

¶ The asset must be actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in 
relation to its current value; 

¶ The sale should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale 
within one year of the date of classification and action required to complete 
the plan should indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan 
will be made or that the plan will be withdrawn. 
 

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classed as Assets Held for Sale, they are 
reclassified back to non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying 
amount before they were classified as assets held for sale.  They are adjusted for 
depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised had 
they not been classified as Held for Sale. 
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Assets that are abandoned or scrapped are not classified as Assets Held for Sale. 
 
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the value of the asset in the 
Balance Sheet is written off to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposal are 
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the 
gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the 
time of disposal). Any revaluation gains in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred 
to the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 
Amounts received from disposal proceeds in excess of £10,000 are categorised as 
capital receipts. A proportion of receipts relating to housing disposals (75% for 
dwellings, 50% for land and other assets, net of statutory deductions and 
allowances) is payable to the Government. The balance of receipts is credited to 
the Capital Receipts Reserve and can only be used either to finance new capital 
investment or set aside to reduce the Councilôs underlying need to borrow.  
 
The gain or loss on the sale of assets is not a charge against council tax.  Amounts 
are appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement 
 
25 Provisions  
 
Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a 
legal or constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of 
economic benefits or service potential and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation.   
 
Provisions are charged to the appropriate service revenue account in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year that the Council 
becomes aware of the obligation, and are measured as a best estimate at the 
balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation taking into 
account relevant risks and uncertainties. 
 
When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision set up in 
the Balance Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of the financial 
year ï where it becomes more likely than not that a transfer of economic benefit will 
not be required (or lower settlement anticipated) the provision is reversed and 
credited back to the relevant service revenue account. 
 
26 Reserves 
 
The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to 
cover contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the 
General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.  When expenditure 
to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service 
revenue account in that year to count against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision 
of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve 
is then appropriated back into the General Fund Balance so that there is no net 
charge against Council Tax for the expenditure. 
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Certain reserves are kept to manage accounting processes for non-current assets, 
financial instruments, and retirement and employee benefits and do not represent 
usable resources for the Council. 
 
27 Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute 
 
Expenditure incurred during the year which may be capitalised under statutory 
provisions but does not result in the creation of a non current asset has been 
charged as expenditure to the relevant service revenue account in the year. Where 
the Council has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital 
resources or by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from 
the General Fund balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the 
amounts charged so there is no impact on the level of council tax. 
 
28 Trust Funds 
 
Details of the nature and amount of trust funds where the Authority acts as the sole 
trustee are disclosed as a note to the Balance Sheet. 
 
29 Value Added Tax (VAT) 
 
The Council is normally able to recover all VAT.  Where this is the case VAT is not 
included in the income and expenditure statements.  Where the Council is unable to 
recover VAT it is charged to the appropriate account. 
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1 Changes in Accounting Policies 
 
There are no major changes in the Accounting Policies that were adopted in the 
production of the 2015/16 Statement of Accounts. The minor changes made to the 
policies reflect the latest legislative position, relevance to this Council, as well as the 
current terminology and phrasing recommended in the Code of Practice guidance 
notes.    
 
2 Accounting Standards that have been issued but have not yet been 

adopted 
 
The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting (the Code) requires the Council 
to disclose the expected impact of new standards that have been issued but not yet 
adopted by the Code for the financial year. This applies to the following new or 
amended standards within the 2015/16 code: 
 

¶ Amendments to IAS19 Employee Benefits (Defined Benefit Plans: Employee 
Contributions. 

¶ Annual Improvements to IFRSs (2010/2012 cycle) 

¶ Amendment to IFRS11 Joint Arrangements (Accounting for Acquisitions of 
Interests in Joint Operations). 

¶ Amendment to IAS16 Property, Plant & Equipment and IAS38 Intangible 
Assets (Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and 
Amortisation). 

¶  Annual Improvements to IFRSs (2012-2014 cycle) 

¶ Amendment to IAS1 Presentation of Financial Statements (Disclosure 
initiative). 

¶ Changes to the format of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement, the Movement in Reserves Statement and the introduction of the 
new Expenditure and Funding Analysis. 

¶ The changes to the format of the Pension Fund Account and the Net Assets 
Statement. 

 
The code does not anticipate that any of the above will have a material impact 
on the financial statements. 

 
The CIPFA code of practice on Highway Network Assets takes effect from 1 April 
2016. Under the code, highway network assets will be recognised as a separate 
class of property, plant and equipment measured at depreciated replacement cost. 
Being a district authority, the Council has no interconnected highways network 
assets so the 2016/17 accounts will be unaffected by this change. 
 
3 Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies 
 
In applying the accounting policies, the Authority has had to make certain 
judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future 
events. The critical judgements made in the Statement of Accounts are: 
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¶ There is a high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for local 
government. However, the Council has determined that this uncertainty is not 
yet sufficient to provide an indication that the assets of the Council might be 
impaired as a result of a need to close facilities and reduce levels of service 
provision. 

¶ A review is undertaken to assess whether capital spend restores or 
enhances an asset. A further judgement is then made as to whether there is 
a consequent requirement to derecognise any existing value of any 
component of the asset. The Council derecognises a component when the 
expenditure exceeds 75% of the carrying value of the component. 
Expenditure on components below this value is impaired through the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 
4 Assumptions made about the future and other major sources of 

estimation uncertainty 
 
The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on 
assumptions made by the Authority about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. 
Estimates are made taking into account historical experiences, current trends and 
other relevant factors. However, because balances cannot be determined with 
certainty, actual results could be materially different from the assumptions and 
estimates. 
 
The items in the Authorityôs Balance Sheet at 31 March 2016 for which there is a 
significant risk of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as 
follows: 
 
Arrears 
 
At 31 March 2016, the Authority had total outstanding arrears of £5.525m. This was 
made up of a sundry debtor balance of £1.352m, rents of £1.756m, overpaid 
housing benefits of £1.479m, NNDR payers of £0.257m and council tax payers of 
£0.681m. A review of bad debt provision has been undertaken based on the age of 
the debt, and a total doubtful debt provision of £2.718m has been made in the 
Accounts. 
 
If collection rates were to change, either positively or negatively, this would be 
reflected in the current yearôs budgets as an increase or decrease in provision 
requirements. Any change in the budgeted provision would impact on reserve 
balances. If collection rates were to deteriorate, 10% of the amount of the 
impairment of bad debts would require an additional provision of £0.272m. 
 
Earmarked Reserves 
 
A sum of £0.586m has been set aside to cover potential legal claims against the 
Council. If the reserve is not required, any remaining balance will be transferred into 
general fund balances. The reserve will be reviewed annually and adjusted 
accordingly. If the reserve is not sufficient then General Fund balances will be 
utilised. 
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A sum has also been set aside for Business Rates (£1m). The amount of income 
retained from business rates each year is based on an estimate as at 31 January, 
the surplus or deficit is based on the outturn position and further adjustments are 
made for the levy and redistributions in and out of the pool. Due to the complexity of 
these estimates an earmarked reserve has been created to mitigate against the 
future impact to the General Fund. 
 
Property, Plant and Equipment 
 
The Councilôs assets are reviewed for impairment on an annual basis by the 
Councilôs Senior Estates and Valuation Officer. The impairment review considers 
the overall market conditions as well as any impairment relating to loss of economic 
benefit. 
 
Assets are depreciated over useful lives that are dependent on assumptions about 
the level of repairs and maintenance that will be incurred in relation to individual 
assets. 
 
If the level of impairment is changed, this will impact on the net worth of the Council. 
Impairment charges are reflected in the Accounts but are reversed through the 
Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no impact on the council tax or 
rent payer.   
 
It is estimated that the annual depreciation charge for buildings, including council 
dwellings, would increase by £1.074m for every year that useful lives had to be 
reduced. 
 
Pensions Liability 
 
Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex 
judgements relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are 
projected to increase, changes in retirement ages, mortality rates and expected 
returns on pension fund assets. A firm of consulting actuaries is engaged to provide 
the Authority with expert advice about the assumptions to be applied. 
 
During 2015/16 the Councilôs actuaries advised that the net pension liability had 
decreased by £9.526m. This is made up of: 
 
Å Ã11.388m actuarial gain 
 
Å Ã1.862m loss arising from employer contributions of £2.709m being less than the 
pension obligations of £4.571m 
 
The effect of changes in the individual assumptions can be measured. For instance 
a 0.5% decrease in the discount rate assumption would result in an increase in the 
pension liability of £12.630m. A one year increase in member life expectancy would 
result in a £3.706m increase in the pension liability. A 0.5% increase in the 
assumed salary increase rate would result in a £3.372m increase in the pension 
liability and an increase of 0.5% in the assumed pension rate would increase the 
pension liability by £9.126m. 
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Business Rates Appeals Provision 
 
Since the introduction of the Business Rates Retention Scheme effective from 1st 
April 2013, Local Authorities are liable for their proportionate share of successful 
appeals against business rates charged to businesses in 2015-16 and earlier 
financial years. Therefore, a provision has been recognised for the best estimate of 
the amount that businesses have overpaid up to 31st March 2016. The estimate 
has been calculated using the latest Valuation Office (VAO) ratings list of appeals 
and the analysis of successful appeals to date when providing the estimate of total 
provision up to and including 31st March 2016. The Councilôs share of the balance 
of business rate appeals provisions held at this date amounted to £1.376m 
compared to £0.400m in 2014/15. 
 
5 Prior Period Adjustments  
 
There have been no prior period adjustments to the published financial statements 
for 2014/15. 
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This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by 
the authority, analysed into óusable reservesô (i.e. those that can be applied to fund 
expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other reserves.  The (surplus) or deficit on 
the Provision of Services line shows the true economic cost of providing the 
authorityôs services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement. These are different from the statutory amounts 
required to be charged to the General Fund Balance and the Housing Revenue 
Account for council tax setting and dwellings rent setting purposes. The Net 
increase/decrease before transfers to Earmarked Reserves line shows the statutory 
General Fund Balance and Housing Revenue Account Balance, before any 
discretionary transfers to or from earmarked reserves by the Council. 
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2015/16 General 
Fund 

Balance 

Earmarked 
Gen Fund 
Reserves 

Housing 
Revenue 
Account 

Earmarked 
HRA 

Reserves 

Capital 
Receipts 
Reserve 

Crem 
Capital 

Reserves 

Major 
Repairs 
Reserve 

Capital 
Grants 

Unapplied 

Total 
Usable 

Reserves 

Unusable 
Reserves 

Total 
Authority 
Reserves 

 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 
            
Balance at 31 March 2015 1,800 4,197 2,798 1,452 1,195 0 7,288 54 18,784 76,164 94,948 
            
In Year Movement in Reserves            
            

Surplus or (deficit) on the 
provision of services 

 
(3,581) 

 
0 

 
(6,740) 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
(10,321) 

 
0 

 
(10,321) 

            
Other Comprehensive Income 
& Expenditure 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
14,908 

 
14,908 

            
Total Comprehensive 
Income & Expenditure 

 
(3,581) 

 
0 

 
(6,740) 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
(10,321) 

 
14,908 

 
4,587 

            
Adjustments between 
accounting basis & funding 
basis under regulations (note 1) 

 
 

5,793 

 
 

0 

 
 

8,733 

 
 

(2,759) 

 
 

605 

 
 

0 

 
 

(6,081) 

 
 

339 

 
 

6,630 

 
 

(6,630) 

 
 

0 

            
Net increase/(decrease) 
before transfers to 
Earmarked Reserves 

 
 

2,212 

 
 

0 

 
 

1,993 

 
 

(2,759) 

 
 

605 

 
 

0 

 
 

(6,081) 

 
 

339 

 
 

(3,691) 

 
 

8,278 

 
 

4,587 
            
Transfers to/(from) Earmarked 
Reserves (note 7) 

 
(2,012) 

 
2,012 

 
(1,820) 

 
1,820 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

            
Increase/(decrease) in 
2015/16 

 
200 

 
2,012 

 
173 

 
(939) 

 
605 

 
0 

 
(6,081) 

 
339 

 
(3,691) 

 
8,278 

 
4,587 

            

Balance at 31 March 2016  2,000 6,209 2,971 513 1,800 0 1,207 393 15,093 84,442 99,535 
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2014/15 General 
Fund 

Balance 

Earmarked 
General 

Fund 
Reserves 

Housing 
Revenue 
Account 

Earmarked 
HRA 

Reserves 

Capital 
Receipts 
Reserve 

Crem 
Capital 

Reserves 

Major 
Repairs 
Reserve 

Capital 
Grants 

Unapplied 

Total 
Usable 

Reserves 

Unusable 
Reserves 

Total 
Authority 
Reserves 

 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 
            
Balance at 31 March 2014 1,705 3,779 2,417 245 1,589 196 786 75 10,792 75,026 85,818 
            
Removal of Crematorium (164) 0 0 0 0 (196) 0 0 (360) (594) (954) 
            
Revised balance 31 March 14 1,541 3,779 2,417 245 1,589 0 786 75 10,432 74,432 84,864 
            
In Year Movement in Reserves            
Surplus or (deficit) on the 
provision of services 

 
(2,215) 

 
0 

 
18,022 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
15,807 

 
0 

 
15,807 

            
Other Comprehensive Income 
& Expenditure 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
(5,723) 

 
(5,723) 

            
Total Comprehensive 
Income & Expenditure 

 
(2,215) 

 
0 

 
18,022 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
15,807 

 
(5,723) 

 
10,084 

            
Adjustments between 
accounting basis & funding 
basis under regulations (note 1) 

 
 

2,892 

 
 

0 

 
 

(15,301) 

 
 

(1,133) 

 
 

(394) 

 
 

0 

 
 

6,502 

 
 

(21) 

 
 

(7,455) 

 
 

7,455 

 
 

0 
            
Net increase/(decrease) 
before transfers to 
Earmarked Reserves 

 
 

677 

 
 

0 

 
 

2,721 

 
 

(1,133) 

 
 

(394) 

 
 

0 

 
 

6,502 

 
 

(21) 

 
 

8,352 

 
 

1,732 

 
 

10,084 
            
Transfers to/(from) Earmarked 
Reserves (note 7) 

 
(418) 

 
418 

 
(2,340) 

 
2,340 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

            
Increase/(decrease) in 
2014/15 

 
259 

 
418 

 
381 

 
1,207 

 
(394) 

 
0 

 
6,502 

 
(21) 

 
8,352 

 
1,732 

 
10,084 

            
Balance at 31 March 2015  1,800 4,197 2,798 1,452 1,195 0 7,288 54 18,784 76,164 94,948 
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 This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to 
be funded from taxation. Authorities raise taxation to cover expenditure in 
accordance with regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost. The 
taxation position is shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
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2014/15  2015/16 

Gross 
Expenditure 

Gross 
Income 

Net 
Expenditure 

 Gross 
Expenditure 

Gross 
Income 

Net 
Expenditure 

Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000  Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 

       

1,413 (906) 507 Central Services to the Public  (note 2) 1,662 (758) 904 

       

6,318 (3,403) 2,915 Cultural & Related Services 6,138 (3,412) 2,726 

       

6,577 (2,951) 3,626 Environmental & Regulatory Services 7,112 (3,109) 4,003 

       

3,963 (1,888) 2,075 Planning Services 2,996 (1,536) 1,460 

       

1,106 (948) 158 Highways, Roads & Transport Services  1,233 (1,050) 183 

       

26,222 (25,247) 975 Housing Services 27,400 (26,180) 1,220 

       

2,990 (544) 2,446 Corporate and Democratic Core 3,167 (560) 2,607 

       

(603) 0 (603) Non Distributed Costs (471) 0 (471) 

       

47,986 (35,887) 12,099 Cost of General Fund services 49,237 (36,605) 12,632 

       

23,008 (33,421) (10,413) Housing Revenue Account 31,734 (33,615) (1,881) 

       

70,994 (69,308) 1,686 Cost of all services 80,971 (70,220) 10,751 

       

  8,148 Other Operating Expenditure (note 3)  7,564 
       

  6,632 
Financing & Investment Income & 
Expenditure (note 4)  7,139 

       
  (32,273) Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (note 5)  (15,133) 
       

  (15,807) 
(Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of 
Services   10,321 

       

  (4,765) 
(Surplus) or Deficit on Revaluation of Fixed 
Assets (note 21)  (3,520) 

       

  10,488 
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Pension 
Assets/Liabilities 

(note 21 &  
37)  (11,388) 

       

  5,723 
Other Comprehensive Income & 
Expenditure   (14,908) 

       

  (10,084) 
Total Comprehensive Income & 
Expenditure   (4,587) 
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 The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and 
liabilities recognised by the authority.  The net assets of the authority (assets less 
liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the authority. Reserves are reported 
in two categories. The first category of reserves are usable reserves, i.e. those 
reserves that the authority may use to provide services, subject to the need to 
maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for 
example the Capital Receipts Reserve that may only be used to fund capital 
expenditure or repay debt). The second category of reserves is those that the 
authority is not able to use to provide services. This category of reserves includes 
reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the Revaluation 
Reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide services if the 
assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement line óAdjustments between accounting basis and funding basis 
under regulationsô. 
 

     

31 March     
2015 

  Note 31 March               
2016 

Ãô000    Ãô000 
     

286,671  Property, Plant & Equipment 8 284,662 
93  Heritage Assets 8 & 9 68 

13,996  Investment Property 10 12,294 
109  Intangible Assets 11 32 

2,346  Long Term Debtors 12 2,950 

303,215  Long Term Assets  300,006 
     

0  Assets Held for Sale 13 0 
88  Inventories 14 96 

9,460  Short Term Debtors 15 5,983 
4,246  Cash & Cash Equivalents 16 3,562 

13,794  Current Assets  9,641 
     

(2,500)  Short Term Borrowing 17 (1,357) 
(9,232)  Short Term Creditors 18 (8,298) 

(436)  Provisions (short term) 19 (1,412) 

(12,168)  Current Liabilities  (11,067) 
     

(156,758)  Long Term Borrowing 17 (155,451) 
(53,135)  Other Long Term Liabilities  (43,594) 

(209,893)  Long Term Liabilities  (199,045) 
     

94,948  Net Assets  99,535 

     
(18,784)  Usable Reserves MIRS & 20 (15,093) 
(76,164)  Unusable Reserves MIRS & 21 (84,442) 

(94,948)  Total Reserves  (99,535) 
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 The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the 

authority during the reporting period. The statement shows how the authority 
generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as 
operating, investing or financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising 
from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of 
the authority are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients 
of services provided by the authority. Investing activities represent the extent to 
which cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended to 
contribute to the authorityôs future service delivery. Cash flows arising from 
financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers 
of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Council.  

 

 
 

    

2014/15 
 

  2015/16 

    

Ãô000   Ãô000 

    

(15,807)  Net (surplus) or deficit on the provision of services 10,321 

    

 
(17,451) 

 Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for 
non cash movements 

 
(33,953) 

    

 
21,086 

 Adjustments for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the 
provision of services that are investing and financing activities  

 
5,966 

    

(12,172)  Net cash flows from Operating Activities (note 22) (17,666) 

    

6,090  Investing Activities (note 23) 17,032 

    

3,332  Financing Activities (note 24) 2,422 

    

(2,750)  Net (increase) or decrease in cash and cash equivalents 1,788 

    

(2,983)  Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period (5,350) 

    

383  Removal of Crematorium Cash Balance 0 

    

(2,600)  Restated cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting 
period 

(0) 

    

 
(5,350) 

 Restated 2014/15 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the 
reporting period 
 (note 16) 

 
(3,562) 
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1 Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under 
Regulations  

 
This note details adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and 
expenditure recognised by the Authority in the year in accordance with proper 
accounting practice to the resources that are specified by statutory provisions as 
being available to the Authority to meet future capital and revenue expenditure. 
 

   
  Usable Reserves  
2015/16         

 General 
Fund 

Balance 

Housing 
Revenue 
Account 

HRA 
Earmarked 

Reserve 

Capital 
Receipts 
Reserve 

Major 
Repairs 
Reserve 

Capital 
Grants 

Unapplied 

Movement in 
Unusable 
Reserves 

 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 

        

Adjustments primarily 
involving the Capital 
Adjustment Account: 

       

Reversal of items debited or 
credited to the Comprehensive 
Income & Expenditure 
Statement: 

       

Charges for depreciation and 
impairment of non-current assets 

 
1,246 

 
19,393 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
20,639 

Revaluation (gains)/ losses on 
Property, Plant & Equipment 

 
368 

 
(243) 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
125 

Movements in the market value 
of Investment Properties 

 
1,010 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
1,010 

Amortisation of intangible assets 88 0 0 0 0 0 88 

Capital grants and contributions 
applied 

 
(374) 

 
(1,015) 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
(1,389) 

Movement in the Donated Assets 
Account 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

Revenue expenditure funded 
from capital under statute 

 
766 

 
354 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
1,120 

Amounts of non-current assets 
written off on disposal or sale as 
part of the gain/loss on disposal 
to the Comprehensive Income & 
Expenditure Statement ï PPE 

 
 
 

 
1,230 

 
 
 
 

6,069 

 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 

7,299 

Amounts of non-current assets 
written off on disposal or sale as 
part of the gain/loss on disposal 
to the Comprehensive Income & 
Expenditure Statement ï 
Investment Properties 

 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 

692 

 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 

692 

Insertion of items not debited or 
credited to the Comprehensive 
Income & Expenditure 
Statement: 

       

Statutory provision for the 
financing of capital investment 

 
(1,010) 

 
(4,300) 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
(5,310) 

Capital expenditure charged 
against the General Fund and 
HRA Balances 

 
 

(146) 

 
 

0 

 
 

(2,759) 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

(2,905) 
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 Usable Reserves  
2015/16          

 General 
Fund 

Balance 

Housing 
Revenue 
Account 

HRA 
Earmarked 

Reserve 

Capital 
Receipts 
Reserve 

Major 
Repairs 
Reserve 

Capital 
Grants 

Unapplied 

Movement 
in Unusable 

Reserves 

 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 

        

Adjustments primarily involving 
the Capital Grants Unapplied 
Account: 

       

Capital grants and contributions 
unapplied credited to the 
Comprehensive Income & 
Expenditure Statement 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

(1,355) 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

1,355 

 
 
 

0 

Application of grants to capital 
financing transferred to the Capital 
Adjustment Account 

 
 

1 

 
 

1,015 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

(1,016) 

 
 

0 

Adjustments primarily involving 
the Capital Receipts Reserve: 

       

Transfer of cash sale proceeds 
credited as part of the gain/loss  
on disposal to the  
Comprehensive Income & 
Expenditure Statement 

 
 
 
 

(1,270) 

 
 
 
 

(2,953) 

 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 

4,223 

 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 

0 

Use of Capital Receipts Reserve to 
finance new capital  
expenditure 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

(391) 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

(391) 

Contribution from the Capital 
Receipts Reserve towards 
repayment of debt 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

(2,575) 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

(2,575) 

Contribution from the Capital 
Receipts Reserve to finance the 
payments to the Government 
capital receipts pool 

 
 
 

667 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

(667) 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

0 

Transfer from Deferred Capital 
Receipts Reserve upon receipt of 
cash 

 
 

0 

 
 

(15) 

 
 

0 

 
 

15 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

Adjustments primarily involving 
the Deferred Capital Receipts 
Reserve: 

       

Transfer of deferred sale proceeds 
credited as part of the gain/loss on 
disposal to the Comprehensive 
Income & Expenditure Statement 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

0 

Adjustment primarily involving 
the Major Repairs Reserve: 

       

Reversal of Major Repairs 
Allowance credited to the HRA 

 
0 

 
(8,909) 

 
0 

 
0 

 
8,909 

 
0 

 
0 

Use of the Major Repairs Reserve 
to finance new capital expenditure 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
(14,990) 

 
0 

 
(14,990) 

Adjustment primarily involving 
the Financial Instruments 
Adjustment Account: 

       

Amount by which finance costs 
charged to the Comprehensive 
Income & Expenditure Statement 
are different from finance costs 
chargeable in the year in 
accordance with statutory 
requirements 

 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 



MOVEMENT IN RESERVES NOTES 

North East Derbyshire District Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
62 

 

 
   
2015/16 Usable Reserves  
   

 General 
Fund 

Balance 

Housing 
Revenue 
Account 

HRA 
Earmarked 

Reserve 

Capital 
Receipts 
Reserve 

Major 
Repairs 
Reserve 

Capital 
Grants 

Unapplied 

Movement in 
Unusable 
Reserves 

 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 

        

Adjustments primarily involving 
the Pensions Reserve: 

       

Reversal of items relating to 
retirement benefits debited or 
credited to the Comprehensive 
Income & Expenditure Statement 

 
 
 

4,571 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

4,571 

Employerôs pensions contributions 
and direct payments to pensioners 
payable in the year 

 
 

(2,709) 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

(2,709) 

Adjustments primarily involving 
the Collection Fund Adjustment 
Account: 

       

Amount by which council 
tax/NNDR income credited to the 
Comprehensive Income & 
Expenditure Statement is different 
from council tax income calculated 
for the year in accordance with 
statutory requirements 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1,346 

 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1,346 

Adjustments primarily involving 
the Unequal Pay Back Pay 
Adjustment Account: 

       

Amounts by which amounts 
charged for Equal Pay claims to 
the Comprehensive Income & 
Expenditure Statement are 
different from the cost of 
settlements chargeable in the year 
in accordance with statutory 
requirements 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

Adjustment primarily involving 
the Accumulated Absences 
Account: 

       

Amount by which officer 
remuneration charged to the 
Comprehensive Income & 
Expenditure Statement on an 
accruals basis is different from 
remuneration chargeable in the 
year in accordance with statutory 
requirements 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9 

 
Total Adjustments 

 
5,793 

 
8,733 

 
(2,759) 

 
605 

 
(6,081) 

 
339 

 
6,630 
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  Usable Reserves  
2014/15         

 General 
Fund 

Balance 

Housing 
Revenue 
Account 

HRA 
Earmarked 

Reserve 

Capital 
Receipts 
Reserve 

Major 
Repairs 
Reserve 

Capital 
Grants 

Unapplied 

Movement in 
Unusable 
Reserves 

 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 

        

Adjustments primarily 
involving the Capital 
Adjustment Account: 

       

Reversal of items debited or 
credited to the Comprehensive 
Income & Expenditure 
Statement: 

       

Charges for depreciation and 
impairment of non-current assets 

 
2,728 

 
10,758 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
(13,486) 

Revaluation (gains)/ losses on 
Property, Plant & Equipment 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

Movements in the market value 
of Investment Properties 

 
(74) 

 
(550) 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
624 

Amortisation of intangible assets 64 0 0 0 0 0 (64) 

Capital grants and contributions 
applied 

 
(228) 

 
(17,729) 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
17,957 

Movement in the Donated Assets 
Account 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

Revenue expenditure funded 
from capital under statute 

 
652 

 
477 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
(1,129) 

Amounts of non-current assets 
written off on disposal or sale as 
part of the gain/loss on disposal 
to the Comprehensive Income & 
Expenditure Statement ï PPE 

 
 
 
 

(163) 

 
 
 
 

6,952 

 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 

(6,789) 

Amounts of non-current assets 
written off on disposal or sale as 
part of the gain/loss on disposal 
to the Comprehensive Income & 
Expenditure Statement ï 
Investment Properties 

 
 
 
 
 

315 

 
 
 
 
 

413 

 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 

(728) 

Insertion of items not debited or 
credited to the Comprehensive 
Income & Expenditure 
Statement: 

       

Statutory provision for the 
financing of capital investment 

 
(851) 

 
(4,300) 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
5,151 

Capital expenditure charged 
against the General Fund and 
HRA Balances 

 
 

(1,192) 

 
 

0 

 
 

(1,133) 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

2,325 
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 Usable Reserves  
2014/15          

 General 
Fund 

Balance 

Housing 
Revenue 
Account 

HRA 
Earmarked 

Reserve 

Capital 
Receipts 
Reserve 

Major 
Repairs 
Reserve 

Capital 
Grants 

Unapplied 

Movement 
in Unusable 

Reserves 

 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 

        

Adjustments primarily involving 
the Capital Grants Unapplied 
Account: 

       

Capital grants and contributions 
unapplied credited to the 
Comprehensive Income & 
Expenditure Statement 

 
 
 

(1) 

 
 
 

(17,729) 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

17,730 

 
 
 

0 

Application of grants to capital 
financing transferred to the Capital 
Adjustment Account 

 
 

22 

 
 

17,729 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

(17,751) 

 
 

0 

Adjustments primarily involving 
the Capital Receipts Reserve: 

       

Transfer of cash sale proceeds 
credited as part of the gain/loss  
on disposal to the  
Comprehensive Income & 
Expenditure Statement 

 
 
 
 

(120) 

 
 
 
 

(2,949) 

 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 

3,069 

 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 

0 

Use of Capital Receipts Reserve to 
finance new capital  
expenditure 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

(520) 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

520 

Contribution from the Capital 
Receipts Reserve towards 
repayment of debt 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

(2,370) 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

2,370 

Contribution from the Capital 
Receipts Reserve to finance the 
payments to the Government 
capital receipts pool 

 
 
 

575 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

(575) 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

0 

Transfer from Deferred Capital 
Receipts Reserve upon receipt of 
cash 

 
 

0 

 
 

(3) 

 
 

0 

 
 

3 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

Adjustments primarily involving 
the Deferred Capital Receipts 
Reserve: 

       

Transfer of deferred sale proceeds 
credited as part of the gain/loss on 
disposal to the Comprehensive 
Income & Expenditure Statement 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

0 

Adjustment primarily involving 
the Major Repairs Reserve: 

       

Reversal of Major Repairs 
Allowance credited to the HRA 

 
0 

 
(8,370) 

 
0 

 
0 

 
8,370 

 
0 

 
0 

Use of the Major Repairs Reserve 
to finance new capital expenditure 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
(1,868) 

 
0 

 
1,868 

Adjustment primarily involving 
the Financial Instruments 
Adjustment Account: 

       

Amount by which finance costs 
charged to the Comprehensive 
Income & Expenditure Statement 
are different from finance costs 
chargeable in the year in 
accordance with statutory 
requirements 

 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 



MOVEMENT IN RESERVES NOTES 

North East Derbyshire District Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
65 

 

 
 

   
2014/15 Usable Reserves  
   

 General 
Fund 

Balance 

Housing 
Revenue 
Account 

HRA 
Earmarked 

Reserve 

Capital 
Receipts 
Reserve 

Major 
Repairs 
Reserve 

Capital 
Grants 

Unapplied 

Movement in 
Unusable 
Reserves 

 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 

        

Adjustments primarily involving 
the Pensions Reserve: 

       

Reversal of items relating to 
retirement benefits debited or 
credited to the Comprehensive 
Income & Expenditure Statement 

 
 
 

3,903 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

(3,903) 

Employerôs pensions contributions 
and direct payments to pensioners 
payable in the year 

 
 

(2,521) 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

2,521 

Adjustments primarily involving 
the Collection Fund Adjustment 
Account: 

       

Amount by which council 
tax/NNDR  income credited to the 
Comprehensive Income & 
Expenditure Statement is different 
from council tax income calculated 
for the year in accordance with 
statutory requirements 

 
 
 
 
 
 

(231) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 
 

231 

Adjustments primarily involving 
the Unequal Pay Back Pay 
Adjustment Account: 

       

Amounts by which amounts 
charged for Equal Pay claims to 
the Comprehensive Income & 
Expenditure Statement are 
different from the cost of 
settlements chargeable in the year 
in accordance with statutory 
requirements 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

Adjustment primarily involving 
the Accumulated Absences 
Account: 

       

Amount by which officer 
remuneration charged to the 
Comprehensive Income & 
Expenditure Statement on an 
accruals basis is different from 
remuneration chargeable in the 
year in accordance with statutory 
requirements 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

14 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(14) 

 
Total Adjustments 

 
2,892 

 
(15,301) 

 
(1,133) 

 
(394) 

 
6,502 

 
(21) 

 
7,455 
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2 Material Items of Income and Expense 
 
2015/16 
 
There were no material items to be disclosed separately during 2015/16. 
 
2014/15 
 
There were no material items to be disclosed separately during 2014/15. 
 
3  Other Operating Expenditure 
 
   

2014/15  2015/16 
Ãô000  Ãô000 

   
3,128 Parish Council Precepts & Council Tax Reduction Contribution 3,145 

575 Payments to the Government Housing Capital Receipts Pool 666 
4,445 (Gains)/losses on the disposal of non-current assets 3,753 

8,148 Total 7,564 

   

 
 
4  Financing and Investment Income & Expenditure 
 
   

2014/15  2015/16 
Ãô000  Ãô000 

   
5,758 Interest payable and similar charges  5,701 
1,764 Net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset) 1,702 

(73) Interest receivable and similar income (197) 
 

(817) 
Income and expenditure in relation to investment properties and 
changes in their fair value 

 
(67) 

0 Other investment income 0 

6,632 Total 7,139 
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5  Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income 
 
   

2014/15  2015/16 
Ãô000  Ãô000 

   
(2,803) Revenue Support Grant (1,971) 

(593) New Homes Bonus Grant (698) 
(58) Council Tax Freeze Grant (58) 

(17,729) Capital grants and contributions (1,355) 

(21,183)  (4,082) 
   

(3,099) Business Rates Retention (2,966) 
(7,991) Council Tax income (includes Parish Council precepts) (8,085) 

   

(32,273) Total (15,133) 
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6 Grant Income 
 
The Authority credited the following grants and contributions to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement in 2015/16. 
 

 2015/16 2014/15 
 Ãô000 Ãô000 
   
Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grant 
Income 
See note 5 

 
 

(4,082) 

 
 

(21,183) 

   
Credited to Services   
   
Council Tax Admin Grant (113) (123) 
Disabled Facilities Grant (373) (284) 
European Elections Grant (13) (131) 
Health Authority Contributions (25) (55) 
Housing Benefits Admin Grant (381) (371) 
Housing Benefits New Burdens Grant (53) (113) 
IER Funding Grant (0) (24) 
Parish Council Contributions (3) (3) 
PFI Project Grant (0) (8) 
Police Authority Contributions (29) (36) 
Rent Allowances Grant (7,484) (7,159) 
Rent Rebates Grant (16,466) (16,152) 
   
Other Grants (376) (269) 
Other Contributions (66) (230) 

   
Total (25,382) (24,958) 
   

Overall Grants Total (29,464) (46,141) 
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The Council has received a number of grants and contributions that have yet to be 
recognised as income as they have conditions attached to them that will require the 
monies or property to be returned to the giver unless specified work or conditions 
are met. The balance at 31 March 2016 is as follows: 

 

 2015/16 2014/15 
 Ãô000 Ãô000 
Capital Grants Receipts in Advance   
   
Section 106 Contributions 608 507 

   
Total 608 507 

   

 
7 Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves 
 
This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund and HRA balances 
in earmarked reserves to provide financing for future expenditure plans and the 
amounts posted back from earmarked reserves to meet General Fund and HRA 
expenditure in 2015/16.  
 
 Balance 

at 1 April 
2014 

 

Transfers 
Out 

2014/15 

Transfers 
In 

2014/15 
 

Balance 
at 31 

March 
2015 

 

Transfers 
Out  

2015/16 

Transfers 
In 

2015/16 

Balance 
at 31 

March 
2016 

 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 

General Fund:        
Revenue grants 
reserve 

 
(456) 

 
260 

 
(416) 

 
(612) 

 
42 

 
(483) 

 
(1,053) 

Legal Reserve (1,317) 630 (0) (687) 101 (0) (586) 
Car Park 
Enforcement 

 
(0) 

 
0 

 
(4) 

 
(4) 

 
0 

 
(0) 

 
(4) 

Planning Policy (170) 0 0 (170) 0 (10) (180) 
Invest to Save (1,441) 528 (1,361) (2,274) 429 (937) (2,783) 
Revenue Projects (173) 75 (0) (98) 19 (5) (84) 
Insurance Reserve 
Business Rates 

(50) 
0 

0 
0 

(10) 
0 

(60) 
0 

0 
0 

(10) 
(1,000) 

(70) 
(1,000) 

Investment 
Properties R & M 

 
(80) 

 
0 

 
(25) 

 
(105) 

 
0 

 
(25) 

 
(130) 

Other Reserves (92) 6 (101) (187) 11 (144) (319) 

Total (3,779) 1,499 (1,917) (4,197) 602 (2,614) (6,209) 
        
HRA        
Insurance Reserve (245) 0 (50) (295) 0 (50) (345) 
New Build Reserve (0) 1,133 (2,290) (1,157) 2,759 (1,770) (168) 
ALMO Deficit 
Reserve  

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 (245) 1,133 (2,340) (1,452) 2,759 (1,820) (513) 
        

Total (4,024) 2,632 (4,257) (5,649) 3,361 (4,434) (6,722) 

        

 



BALANCE SHEET NOTES 

North East Derbyshire District Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
70 

 

8  Property, Plant and Equipment 
 

 
Movements in 2015/16 
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Cost or Valuation & Impairment Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 
            
At 1 April 2015 263,921 15,394 3,544 390 93 1 333 4,966 288,642 1,374 290,016 
            
Movement in cost or valuation            
            
Reclassification 4,955 0 11 0 0 0 0 (4,966) 0 0 0 
            
Assets reclassified (to)/from Held for Sale 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
            
Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in the Revaluation 
Reserve - 1 April 

0 228 0 0 0 0 0 0 228 0 228 

            
Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in the 
surplus/deficit on the provision of service ï 1 April 

0 (152) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (152) 0 (152) 

            
Additions 19,955 346 1,905 0 0 0 0 302 22,508 0 22,508 
            
Impairment of Additions ï Revaluation Reserve (302) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (302) 0 (302) 
            
Impairment of Additions ï CIES (11,636) (346) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (11,982) 0 (11,982) 
            
Disposals (6,310) (1,206) (113) 0 (25) 0 0 0 (7,654) (1,152) (8,806) 
            
Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in the Revaluation 
Reserve ï 31 March 

365 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 365 0 365 

            
Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in the 
surplus/deficit on the provision of service ï 31 March 

(4,235) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (4,235) 0 (4,235) 

At 31 March 2016 266,713 14,264 5,347 390 68 1 333 302 287,418 222 287,640 
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Movements in 2015/16 
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 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 
            
Accumulated Depreciation            
            
At 1 April 2015 0 (784) (1,180) (26) 0 0 0 0 (1,990) (1,262) (3,252) 
            
Movement in depreciation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Reclassification            
            
Depreciation Charge (6,617) (290) (542) (6) 0 0 0 0 (7,455) (107) (7,562) 
            
Assets reclassified (to)/from Held for Sale 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
            
Depreciation written out to the Revaluation Reserve 3,229 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,229 0 3,229 
            
Depreciation written out to the surplus/deficit on the provision of 
service 

3,140 27 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,167 0 3,167 

            
Disposals 248 20 88 0 0 0 0 0 356 1,152 1,508 
            
Depreciation reversed due to impairment review 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

            
At 31 March 2016 0 (1,027) (1,634) (32) 0 0 0 0 (2,693) (217) (2,910) 

            
Net Book Value            
            
At 31 March 2016 266,713 13,237 3,713 358 68 1 333 302 284,725 5 284,730 
            
At 31 March 2015 263,921 14,610 2,364 364 93 1 333 4,966 286,652 112 286,764 
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Movements in 2014/15 
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Cost or Valuation & Impairment Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 
             
At 1 April 2014  254,600 17,214 3,650 390 93 1 333 3,259 279,540 1,780 930 282,250 
             
Removal of Crematorium 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (930) (930) 
             

Restated Balance at 1 April 2014 254,600 17,214 3,650 390 93 1 333 3,259 279,540 1,780 0 281,320 
             
Reclassifications 0 (3,100) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (3,100) 0 0 (3,100) 
             
Assets reclassified (to)/from Held for Sale 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
             
Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in the 
Revaluation Reserve - 1 April 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

             
Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in the 
surplus/deficit on the provision of service ï 1 April 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

             
Additions 23,688 1,929 1,739 0 0 0 0 1,707 29,063 0 0 29,063 
             
Impairment of Additions ï Revaluation Reserve (450) (473) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (923) 0 0 (923) 
             
Impairment of Additions ï CIES (11,139) (1,456) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (12,595) 0 0 (12,595) 
             
Disposals (7,065) 0 (1,845) 0 0 0 0 0 (8,910) (406) 0 (9,316) 
             
Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in the 
Revaluation Reserve ï 31 March 

 
323 

 
2,026 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
2,349 

 
0 

 
0 

 
2,349 

             
Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in the 
surplus/deficit on the provision of service ï 31 March 

 
3,964 

 
(746) 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
3,218 

 
0 

 
0 

 
3,218 

             

At 31 March 2015 263,921 15,394 3,544 390 93 1 333 4,966 288,642 1,374 0 290,016 
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Movements in 2014/15 
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 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 
             
Accumulated Depreciation             
             
 
At 1 April 2014 

 
0 

 
(851) 

 
(2,780) 

 
(20) 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
(3,651) 

 
(1,359) 

 
(226) 

 
(5,236) 

             
Removal of Crematorium 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 226 226 
             

Restated Balance at 1 April 2014 0 (851) (2,780) (20) 0 0 0 0 (3,651) (1,359) 0 (5,010) 
             
Movement in depreciation             
Reclassification 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
             
Depreciation Charge (6,527) (318) (223) (6) 0 0 0 0 (7,074) (298) 0 (7,372) 
             
Assets reclassified (to)/from Held for Sale 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
             
Depreciation written out to the Revaluation Reserve 3,229 110 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,339 0 0 3,339 
             
Depreciation written out to the surplus/deficit on the provision of 
service 

 
2,990 

 
275 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
3,265 

 
0 

 
0 

 
3,265 

             
Disposals 308 0 1,823 0 0 0 0 0 2,131 395 0 2,526 
             
Depreciation reversed due to impairment review 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

             
At 31 March 2015 0 (784) (1,180) (26) 0 0 0 0 (1,990) (1,262) 0 (3,252) 

             
Net Book Value             
             
At 31 March 2015 263,921 14,610 2,364 364 93 1 333 4,966 286,652 112 0 286,764 
             
At 31 March 2014 254,600 16,363 870 370 93 1 333 3,259 275,889 421 704 277,014 
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Depreciation 
 
The following useful lives and depreciation rates have been used in the calculation 
of depreciation: 
 
Council Dwellings ï  
 

Component 
 

Useful Life 

Land Infinite life 
Building 20 - 80 years (see note below) 
Roof 50 years 
Windows & Doors 30 years 
Bathroom 20 years 
Heating 20 years 
Kitchen 15 years 
  

 
During 2015/16 the building component of council dwellings has been depreciated 
over the following number of years: - 
 
Defective Houses ï 20 years 
Pre 1945 ï 50 years 
1945 ï 1974 ï 60 years 
Post 1974 ï 80 years 
Post 2010 ï 80 years 
 
Other assets are depreciated over the following lives: - 
 
Other Land and Buildings ï 10 ï 50 years 
Vehicles, Plant, Furniture and Equipment ï 1 ï 25 years 
 
There is no requirement to depreciate land assets. In calculating depreciation, the 
straight line method has been adopted using a prudent estimate for the useful 
economic life and residual value for individual assets within each category. The 
fixed asset register contains the detailed information used in the depreciation 
calculation.  
 
Leased vehicles are depreciated on a straight line basis from the month of 
acquisition. 
 
Assets under Construction 
 
The majority of the Assets under Construction figure (£0.302m) is for work on the 
DECC funded central heating replacement scheme.  
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Impairment Losses 
 
The Council has impaired £12.284m of capital works undertaken during 2015/16 
(£13.518m, 2014/15) of which £11.982m (£12.595m, 2014/15) has been put 
through the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and £0.302m 
(£0.923m, 2014/15) through the Revaluation Reserve. It is recognised that this 
expenditure is not reflected in the overall value of the property. 
 
The 31 March 2016 impairment losses of £3.870m (£5.567m gains, 2014/15) arise 
as values are adjusted to reflect current market values within the asset categories 
shown. Of which £4.235m loss (£5.668m gain, 2014/15) has been put through the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and a gain of £0.365m 
(£0.101m loss, 2014/15) through the Revaluation Reserve. 
 
Capital Commitments 
 
The following table identifies the capital commitments at the end of the financial 
year. 
 

   
 31 March 

2016 
31 March 

2015 
 Ãô000 Ãô000 

   
Disabled Facilities Grants 181 159 
TARRAN Scheme 943 2,468 
   

Total Commitments  1,124 2,627 

   

 
Revaluations 
 
A certified Valuation Report has been prepared by the Councilôs qualified Senior 
Estates and Valuation Officer for Council Dwellings, Operational and Non-
Operational assets.  The valuations are assessed on the basis of open market 
value (for existing use where appropriate) or depreciated replacement cost (where 
there is no market for the property) in accordance with the Statements of Asset 
Valuation Practice and Guidance Notes of the Royal Institution of Chartered 
Surveyors.   
 
Valuations are assessed at maximum five year periods with additional annual desk-
top reviews.  The date of the last full valuation of assets was 1 April 2014. Council 
Housing stock is valued on the basis of market value with vacant possession less a 
regional reduction of 34% to take account of the reduction in value arising from 
sitting tenantôs rights.  
 
Vehicles, Plant and Equipment, Infrastructure and Community Assets are shown in 
the Balance Sheet at historic cost. 
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Assets are reviewed for any significant increases or decreases (impairment) in 
value every year. Impairment of assets is assessed in accordance with the 
guidance below. The Council has considered the following in respect of the 
valuations placed upon its assets in the Balance Sheet at 31 March 2016: 
 

¶ any significant increase or decline in a fixed assetôs market value during the 
period; 
 

¶ evidence of obsolescence or physical damage to the fixed asset; 
 

¶ a significant adverse change in the statutory or other regulatory environment 
in which the Authority operates; 

 

¶ a commitment by the Authority to undertake a significant reorganisation. 
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The following table shows the in year valuation changes for each category of non-
current assets compared with the current historic cost: 
 

T
o

ta
l 

Ã
ô
0
0
0

 

6
,2

6
2

  

2
7
1
,2

5
0

 

6
,4

1
5

 

8
2
4

 

2
,7

8
8

 

1
0
1

 

2
8
7
,6

4
0

 

L
e
a
s
e
d

 

A
s
s
e
ts

 

Ã
ô
0
0
0

 

2
2
2

  

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

2
2
2

 

A
s
s
e
ts

 

U
n

d
e
r 

C
o

n
s
tr

-

u
c
ti

o
n

 

Ã
ô
0
0
0

 

3
0
2

  

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

3
0
2

 

S
u

rp
lu

s
 

A
s
s
e
ts

 

Ã
ô
0
0
0

 0
  

0
 

0
 

0
 

3
3
3

 

0
 

3
3
3

 

C
o

m
m

-

u
n

it
y
 

A
s
s
e
ts

 

Ã
ô
0
0
0

 1
  

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

1
 

H
e
ri

-

ta
g

e
 

A
s
s
e
ts

 

Ã
ô
0
0
0

 0
  

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

6
8

 

6
8

 

In
fr

a
-

s
tr

u
c
t-

u
re

 

A
s
s
e
ts

 

Ã
ô
0
0
0

 

3
9
0

  

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

3
9
0

 

V
e
h

ic
le

s
, 

P
la

n
t,

 

F
u

rn
it

u
re

 

a
n

d
 

E
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t 

Ã
ô
0
0
0

 

5
,3

4
7

  

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

5
,3

4
7

 

O
th

e
r 

L
a
n

d
 

a
n

d
 

B
u

il
d

-

in
g

s
 

Ã
ô
0
0
0

 0
  

4
,5

3
7

 

6
,4

1
5

 

8
2
4

 

2
,4

5
5

 

3
3

 

1
4
,2

6
4

 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 

D
w

e
ll
in

g
s

 

Ã
ô
0
0
0

 

0
  

2
6
6
,7

1
3

 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

2
6
6
,7

1
3

 

 

 

C
a
rr

ie
d
 a

t 

h
is

to
ri
c
 c

o
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
d
 a

t 
fa

ir
 

v
a
lu

e
 a

s
 a

t:
 

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 

 2
0
1

6
 

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 

 2
0
1

5
 

3
1

 M
a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
4

 

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
3

 

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
2

 

T
o

ta
l 
c
o

s
t 

o
r 

v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

 

 



BALANCE SHEET NOTES 

North East Derbyshire District Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
78 

 

 
9 Heritage Assets 
 
Reconciliation of the carrying value of Heritage Assets held by the Authority: - 
 

 Civic 
Regalia 

Sculpture Total 
Assets 

    
Cost or Valuation Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 
    
1 April 2014 68 25 93 

    

31 March 2015 68 25 93 

    
1 April 2015 68 25 93 

    
Disposals 0 (25) (25) 

    

31 March 2016 68 0 68 

    

 
Civic Regalia 
 
The Authorityôs collection of civic regalia is reported in the Balance Sheet at a 
jewellerôs valuation which is based on market values. The most recent valuation has 
taken place during the 2011/12 financial year. 
 
Sculpture 
 
The Authority sold the sculpture crafted by Dan Archer as part of the sale of 
Saltergate offices during 2015/16.  
 
Heritage Assets: Five year summary of transactions 
 

 2015/16 2014/15 2013/14 2012/13 2011/12 
 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 

      
Balance b/fwd 93 93 93 93 65 
      
Revaluation of Assets      
      
Civic Regalia 0 0 0 0 28 
      
Disposal of Assets      
      
Sculpture (25) 0 0 0 0 
      

Balance c/fwd 68 93 93 93 93 
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10  Investment Properties 
 
The following items of income and expenditure have been accounted for in the 
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 

   
 2015/16 2014/15 
 Ãô000 Ãô000 

   
Rental income from investment  property (538) (523) 
   
Direct operating expenses arising from investment property 451 310 
   
Capital Transactions 20 (604) 

   
Net (gain)/loss (67) (817) 

   

 
There are no restrictions on the Councilôs ability to realise the value inherent in its 
investment property or on the Councilôs right to the remittance of income and the 
proceeds of disposal. The Council has no contractual obligations to purchase, 
construct or develop investment property or repairs, maintenance or enhancement. 
 
Fair Value Hierarchy 
 
Details of the Councilôs investment properties and information about the fair value 
hierarchy as at 31 March 2016 with comparators for 2014/15 are as follows: 
 

  
 

Level 1 
 

 
 

Level 2 

 
 

Level 3 

Fair Value 
as at  

31 March 
2016 

 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 
     
Industrial Units 0 4,625 0 4,625 
     
Commercial Properties 0 1,140 0 1,140 
     
Land 0 6,109 0 6,109 
     
Craft Centre 0 420 0 420 
     

Total 0 12,294 0 12,294 
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Level 1 
 

 
 

Level 2 

 
 

Level 3 

Fair Value 
as at  

31 March 
2015 

 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 
     
Industrial Units 0 4,625 0 4,625 
     
Commercial Properties 0 1,140 0 1,140 
     
Land 0 7,811 0 7,811 
     
Craft Centre 0 420 0 420 
     

Total 0 13,996 0 13,996 

     

 
 

¶ Level 1 valuation uses quoted prices in active markets for identical assets. 
 

¶ Level 2 valuation uses other observable inputs. 
 

¶ Level 3 valuation uses significant unobservable inputs. 
 
Valuation Techniques used to determine Level 2 (Significant Observable 
Inputs) Fair Values for Investment Properties 
 
The fair value for the £12.294m has been based on the market approach using 
current market conditions and recent sales prices and other relevant information for 
similar assets in the Councilôs area. Market conditions are such that similar 
properties are actively purchased and sold and the level of observable inputs are 
significant, leading to the properties being categorised at Level 2 in the fair value 
hierarchy. 
 
Highest and Best Use of Investment Properties 
 
In estimating the fair value of the Councilôs investment properties, the highest and 
best use of the properties is their current use. 
 
Valuation Techniques 
 
There has been no change in the valuation techniques used during the year for 
investment properties. 
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The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of investment 
properties over the year: 
 

   
 2015/16 2014/15 
 Ãô000 Ãô000 
   
Balance at 1 April  13,996 11,075 
Removal of Crematorium 0 (75) 

Restated Balance at 1 April  13,996 11,000 
   
Reclassifications ï Asset moved from OLB 0 3,100 
   
Additions:   
Purchases 0 0 
   
Disposals (692) (728) 
   
Net gains/losses from fair value adjustments (1,010) 624 
   

   
Balance at 31 March  12,294 13,996 

   

 
 
11  Intangible Assets 
 
The Council accounts for its software as intangible assets, to the extent that the 
software is not an integral part of a particular IT system and accounted for as part of 
the hardware item of Property, Plant and Equipment. The intangible assets include 
only purchased licences as the Council has no internally generated software. All 
software is given a finite useful life, based on assessments of the period that the 
software is expected to be of use to the Council. The useful lives assigned to the 
major software suites used by the Council are: 
 

  

Useful Life Software Package 

  

3 Years Uniform ï Planning 

 GIS 

 UPS Software 

 Paye.net  

 Windows 7  

 ISM Web 

 Joint Domain 
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The movement on intangible asset balances during the year is as follows: 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The intangible assets relate to computer software. This includes amortisation costs 
of £0.088m (£0.064m, 2014/15) which have been charged to services in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The assets are being 
amortised over a period of 3 years using a straight line method. An impairment 
review of these assets was undertaken as at 31 March 2016 which has not 
impacted on the asset values. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   
 2015/16 2014/15 
 Ãô000 Ãô000 

   
Balance at 1 April    
Gross carrying amount 661 1,010 
Accumulated amortisation (552) (894) 
   
Reclassification ï Asset 0 0 
Reclassification ï Accumulated Amortisation 0 0 

   
Net carrying amount 1 April  109 116 
   
Additions:   
Purchases 11 57 
Amortisation for the period (88) (64) 
   
Disposals:   
Assets at GBV 0 (406) 
Amortisation 0 406 

   
Net carrying amount at 31 March  32 109 

   
Comprising:   
Gross carrying amounts 672 661 
Accumulated amortisation (640) (552) 

   
 32 109 
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12  Long Term Debtors 
 

 31 March 
2016 

31 March  
2015 

 Ãô000 Ãô000 

Housing act advances & outstanding 
mortgages 8 21 
Rykneld Homes Loan 2,914 2,283 
Transferred debt 28 42 

Total long term debtors 2,950 2,346 

   

 
13  Assets Held For Sale 
 
The Council has no Assets held for Sale at 31 March 2016.  
 
14  Inventories 
 

 31 March 
2016 

31 March 
2015 

 Ãô000 Ãô000 
Street Scene 75 64 
Swimming pools/leisure centres 17 22 
Other 4 2 

 96 88 

   

 
15   Short Term Debtors 
 

 31 March 
2016 

31 March 
2015 

 Ãô000 Ãô000 
   
Central Government Bodies 1,729 5,788 
Other Local Authorities 374 208 
Bodies External to Central Government 3,880 3,464 

   
 5,983 9,460 
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16  Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
The balance of cash and cash equivalents is made up of the following elements: 
 

   
 31 March 

2016 
31 March 

2015  
 Ãô000 Ãô000 

Cash held by Authority 6 6 
Bank current accounts 16 4,202 
Short term deposits  3,540 38 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,562 4,246 

   

 
 
17  Financial Instruments 
 
The aim of this note is to disclose the nature and extent of risks arising from 
financial instruments to which the Authority is exposed and to report how the 
Authority manages those risks.   
 
Good practice for the main financial instruments held by the Council is covered 
within the CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice.  
The Council has adopted this code of practice and agrees an annual Treasury 
Management Strategy.  The Treasury Management Strategy (approved by Council) 
has set treasury management indicators and policies to mitigate key financial 
instrument risks in accordance with CIPFAôs Prudential Code.   
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Categories of Financial Instruments 
 
The following categories of financial instruments are carried in the Balance Sheet. 
 
The borrowings and investments disclosed in the Balance Sheet are made up of the 
following categories of financial instruments: 
 

(a) Long Term Current 
 31 March 

2016 
31 March 

2015 
31 March 

2016 
31 March 

2015 
 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Investments     
Loans and Receivables 0 0 3,540 38 

Total Investments 0 0 3,540 38 
     
Debtors     
Loans and receivables 2,950 2,346 0 0 
Financial assets carried at contract amounts 0 0 4,399 12,971 

Total Debtors 2,950 2,346 4,399 12,971 
     
Borrowings     
Financial liabilities at amortised cost (155,451) (156,758) (1,357) (2,500) 

Total Borrowings (155,451) (156,758) (1,357) (2,500) 
     
Other Long Term Liabilities     
Council House Mortgages Liability (9) (25)   

Total Other Long Term Liabilities (9) (25)   
     
Creditors     
Financial liabilities carried at contract amount 0 0 (8,130) (9,051) 

Total Creditors 0 0 (8,130) (9,051) 
     

 

Investments 
 
The Council has the following investments as at 31 March 2016. 
 

(b) Total 
Investment 

Total 
Investment 

 31 March 2016 31 March 2015 
 Ãô000 Ãô000 

Nat West Bank 19 18 
Bank of Scotland  0 0 
Santander 21 20 
Federated 3,500 0 
   

Total Investment 3,540 38 
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The following tables reconcile Debtors and Creditors included in financial 
instruments to the Balance Sheet:- 
 

(c) 31 March 
2016 

31 March 
2015 

 £'000 £'000 
   
Debtors in B/S 5,983 9,460 
Cash & Cash Equivalents in B/S 3,562 4,246 
Adjustments   
Government Debtors (1,704) (1,116) 
Council Tax Debtors (681) (651) 
Overpaid Housing Benefit Debtors (1,479) (1,253) 
Preceptors Debtors (202) 0 
NNDR Ratepayer Debtors (257) (197) 
Doubtful Debt Provision 2,717 2,520 
Investments (3,540) (38) 
   

Total Current Debtors 4,399 12,971 

   

 
External debt held by the Council is detailed below: 
 

(d) Current Borrowing Long Term Borrowing 
 31 March 

2016 
31 March 

2015 
31 March 

2016 
31 March 

2015 
 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
     
Public Works Loan Board (1,301) (2,304) (155,451) (156,753) 
Accrued Interest  (51) (78) 0 0 
Temporary borrowing 0 0 0 0 
Leasing Liability (5) (118) 0 (5) 
     

Total Borrowing (1,357) (2,500) (155,451) (156,758) 

     

 
Creditor amounts owed by the Council are detailed below: 
 

(e) 31 March 
2016 

31 March 
2015 

 £'000 £'000 
   
Creditors in B/S (8,298) (9,232) 
Adjustments   
NNDR Ratepayer Creditors 42 67 
Council Tax Creditors 126 114 
   

Total Current Creditors (8,130) (9,051) 
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Analysis of Debt Maturity 
 

(f) Average 
Rate 

 

Total 
Outstanding 

Total 
Outstanding 

 31 March 
2016 

31 March 
2016 

31 March 
2015 

 % £'000 £'000 
    
Less than one year ï PWLB 4.985 (1,301) (2,304) 
PWLB Accrued Interest  (51) (78) 
Leasing Liability  (5) (118) 
Temporary borrowing  (0) (0) 

Total short term borrowing  (1,357) (2,500) 
    
Leasing Liability ï 1 ï 2 years  (0) (5) 
PWLB Loans    
1 ï 2 years 4.985 (1,302) (1,302) 
2 ï 5 years 4.519 (4,911) (5,910) 
5 ï 10 years 3.988 (21,538) (12,841) 
10 ï 15 years 3.167 (18,470) (23,377) 
15 ï 20 years 3.361 (36,140) (32,233) 
20 ï 25 years 3.510 (42,000) (42,000) 
25 ï 30 years 3.506 (23,272) (27,454) 
30 ï 35 years 3.520 (3,818) (7,636) 
35 ï 40 years 4.550 (4,000) (4,000) 
40 ï 45 years 0.000 (0) (0) 

Total long term borrowing  (155,451) (156,758) 
    

Total Borrowing 3.583 (156,808) (159,258) 

    

 
Fair Value of assets and liabilities carried at amortised cost in the balance sheet. 
 
Financial liabilities and financial assets represented by loans and receivables are 
carried in the Balance Sheet at amortised cost.  Their fair value can be assessed by 
calculating the present value of the cash flows that will take place over the 
remaining term of the instruments, using the following assumptions: 
 

¶ PWLB Debt - The PWLB Premature Repayment set of rates in force on 31 
March 2016, the 2015 figure by reference to the set of interest rates in force 
on 31 March 2015; 

 

¶ Long Term Debtors ï the relevant term PWLB interest rates at 31 March 
2016 have been applied to the effective interest rate calculation.  Where the 
effective interest rate calculation has been made and the difference between 
the carrying amount and fair value is deemed immaterial (i.e. less than 
£10,000) the fair value and carrying amount are shown as the same value;  
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¶ Financial instruments that will mature within 12 months - The carrying 
amount is assumed to approximate to fair value; 

 

¶ Trade and other receivables - The fair value is taken to be the invoiced or 
billed amount. 

 
The fair values calculated are as follows: 
 

(g) 31 March 2016 31 March 2015   
 Carrying 

Amount 
Ãô000 

Fair Value 
 

Ãô000 

Carrying 
Amount 
 £ô000 

Fair Value 
 

£ô000 
     
Financial Liabilities     
PWLB debt (156,752) (193,597) (159,057) (196,127) 
PWLB Accrued Interest (51) (51) (78) (78) 
Leasing Liability (5) (5) (123) (123) 
Other Long Term Liabilities (9) (9) (25) (25) 
Long Term Creditors (0) (0) (0) (0) 
Creditors/Cash overdrawn (8,130) (8,130) (9,051) (9,051) 

 (164,947) (201,792) (168,334) (205,404) 

     

 
The fair value is greater than the carrying amount because the Authorityôs portfolio 
of loans includes a number of loans where the interest rate payable is above the 
rates available for similar loans at the Balance Sheet date.  This commitment 
increases the amount that the Authority would have to pay if the lender (PWLB) 
requested or agreed to the early repayment of the loans.   
 
The fair value of Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) loans of £193.597m measures 
the economic effects of the terms agreed with the PWLB compared with estimates 
of the terms that would be offered for market transactions undertaken at the 
Balance Sheet date, which has been assumed as the PWLB redemption interest 
rates. The difference between the carrying amount and the fair value measures the 
additional interest that the authority will pay over the remaining terms of the loans 
under the agreements with the PWLB, against what would be paid if the loans were 
at prevailing market rates. 
 
However, the authority has a continuing ability to borrow at concessionary rates 
from the PWLB rather than from the markets, termed the PWLB Certainty interest 
rates. A supplementary measure of the fair value as a result of its PWLB 
commitments for fixed rate loans is to compare the terms of these loans with the 
new borrowing rates available from the PWLB. If a value is calculated on this basis, 
the carrying amount of £156.752m would be valued at £170.386m. But, if the 
authority were to seek to avoid the projected loss by repaying the loans to the 
PWLB, the PWLB would raise a penalty charge, based on the redemption interest 
rates, for early redemption of £36.845m for the additional interest that will not now 
be paid. The exit price for the PWLB loans including the penalty charge would be 
£193.597m. 
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(h) 31 March 2016 31 March 2015   
 Carrying 

Amount 
Ãô000 

Fair Value 
 

Ãô000 

Carrying 
Amount 
 £ô000 

Fair Value 
 

£ô000 
Loans and Receivables     
  Long Term Debtors 2,950 2,950 2,346 2,346 
  Debtors/Cash in Hand 4,399 4,399 12,971 12,971 

 7,349 7,349 15,317 15,317 

     

 

The effective interest rate calculation of the Long Term Debtors (Transferred Debt, 
Housing Act Advances, Right to Buy mortgages and other loans) did not produce a 
material difference between the carrying value and the fair value and as such no 
adjustments are made to the carrying amounts. 
 
The nature and extent of risks arising from Financial Instruments and how the 
Council manages those risks   
 
The Councilôs activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: 
 
 

¶ Credit risk ï the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to 
the Council; 

 

¶ Liquidity risk ï the possibility that the Council might not have enough funds 
available to meet its commitments to make payments; 

 

¶ Market risk ï the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Council as a 
result of changes in such measures as interest rates and stock market 
movements. 

 
Within the Councilôs Treasury Management function of the Chief Financial Officer, 
the risk management of financial instruments is of paramount importance as it 
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential 
adverse effects on the resources available to fund services.  Under policies 
approved by the Council (Annual Treasury Management Strategy), the Council 
provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies 
covering specific areas, such as interest rate risk, credit risk and the investment of 
surplus cash.  The main principles set out in the Treasury Management Strategy 
are that security and liquidity, rather than return are the prime considerations. 
 
Credit Risk 
 
Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as 
credit exposures to the Councilôs customers.  Deposits are not made with banks or 
financial institutions unless they are rated independently with a minimum score of  
A-.The limit on deposits with our own bank and money market funds is £5m and no 
more than £5m will be lent to any other institution at any one time. 
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The Council mainly invests surplus cash flow funds with a financial institution with 
appropriate status as set out in the Treasury Management Strategy. There is no 
historical experience of default.  At 31 March 2016 there was no overnight 
borrowing.   
 
The Councilôs Long Term Debtors are listed below: 
 

(i) Number of 
advances 

Balance 
Outstanding 

 (Ãô000) 

Max Loan Period 
Outstanding 

(Years)  
 2015/16 2014/15 2015/16 2014/15 2015/16 2014/15 
       
Housing Act Advances 
and RTB mortgages 

 
3 

 
5 8 21 5 6 

Transferred Debt 1 2 28 42 3 4 
Rykneld Homes Loan 5 4 2,914 2,283 24 25 
       

 9 11 2,950 2,346   

       

 
 

¶ HAA and RTB mortgages are collected via the cash office or direct debit and 
managed on behalf of the Council by an independent company that complies 
with all the requirements of the Financial Services Authority; 

 

¶ Transferred debt, Rykneld Homes Loan are managed internally with annual 
invoices and statements sent to the two Councils, Rykneld Homes Limited, 
the Housing Association and Credit Union. 

 
Debtorôs covers general year end trade debtors and rent arrears.  The Council does 
not generally allow credit for customers, such that some of the debtor balances are 
past the date due for payment.  The Council has set aside doubtful debt provisions 
of £2.408m to meet any of these debts that are deemed to be non-collectible 
(2014/15, £2.242m).   
 
Age debt profile of debt past its due date for payment: 
 
2015/16 
 
(j) Rents General 

Debtors 
Year End 
Debtors 

Cash & 
Cash 

Equivalents  

TOTAL 

 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 
      
0 to 3 months 0 934 1,270 3,562 5,766 
3 months and over 1,756 212 0 0 1,968 
Over 1 year 0 206 2,950 0 3,156 

 1,756 1,352 4,220 3,562 10,890 

      

 



BALANCE SHEET NOTES 

North East Derbyshire District Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
91 

 

2014/15 
 
(k) Rents General 

Debtors 
Year End 
Debtors 

Cash & 
Cash 

Equivalents 

TOTAL 

 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 
      
0 to 3 months 0 1,113 5,387 4,246 10,746 
3 months and over 2,002 109 0 0 2,111 
Over 1 year 0 152 2,346 0 2,498 

 2,002 1,374 7,733 4,246 15,355 

      

 
Liquidity Risk 
 
As the Authority has ready access to borrowings from the Public Works Loans 
Board, there is no significant risk that it will be unable to raise finance to meet its 
commitments under financial instruments. The Council employs appropriately 
trained staff to assist in making decisions regarding the Councilôs long term 
borrowing strategy. 
 
All trade and other payables are due to be paid in less than one year. 
 
Market Risk 
 
Interest Rate Risk 
 
The Authority is exposed to risk in terms of its exposure to interest rate movements 
on its borrowings and investments.  Movements in rates have a complex impact on 
the Authority.  For instance a rise in interest rates would have the following effects: 
 

¶ Borrowing for short term cash flow ï the interest expense charged to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement will rise; 

 

¶ Borrowings at fixed rates ï the fair value of the liabilities would fall; 
 

¶ Investment of short term cash flow funds ï the interest earned and credited 
to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement will rise. 

 
Borrowings are not carried at fair value in the Balance Sheet so nominal gains or 
losses on fixed rate borrowings would not impact on the Comprehensive Income & 
Expenditure Statement. 
 
The Council has no long term PWLB debt at variable interest rates.  The Council 
does not invest in any shares.   
 
Price Risk and Foreign Risks 
 
The Council does not have any financial instruments that are subject to price 
variations.  The Council also does not hold any foreign investments or borrowings. 
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18  Short Term Creditors 
 

 31 March 31 March 
 2016 2015 

 
 £'000 £'000 
   
Central Government Bodies (880) (1,865) 
Other Local Authorities (805) (758) 
NHS Bodies (8) (13) 
Bodies External to General Government (6,605) (6,596) 

 (8,298) (9,232) 

   

 
19  Provisions 
 
Provisions have been made for known liabilities uncertain as to the amount or 
timing in compliance with IAS37. 
 

 31 Use of   31 
 March provision Provision March 

 2015 In year in year 2016 
 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 

     
Rykneld Homes Loss Provision (36) 0 (0) (36) 
NNDR Appeals Provision (400) 1,805 (2,781) (1,376) 
     

 (436) 1,805 (2,781) (1,412) 

     

 
Rykneld Homes Loss 
 
This is a provision set aside to meet the costs where Rykneld Homes Limited has 
recorded a trading loss. It is envisaged that the provision will be offset in future 
years when Rykneld Homes Limited make trading profits. 
 
NNDR Appeals  
 
The Collection Fund (NNDR) has a number of outstanding appeals regarding the 
Rateable Value applied to the premises within the District. These appeals are being 
heard by the District Valuer at the Valuation Office and are independent of the 
Council. The outstanding appeals at 31 March 2016, when assessed, may result in 
a reduction in the rateable value and as a result reduce the NNDR liability which will 
reduce NNDR income in the Collection Fund and therefore to the Council (40%). 
Some of these outstanding appeals go back over a number of years. The Council 
has employed an independent company to assess the appeals and assist in the 
calculation of an appropriate provision. The figures above relate only to the 
Councilôs proportion of outstanding appeals as at 31 March 2016. 
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20  Usable Reserves 
 
Movements in the Councilôs usable reserves are summarised below:  
 

 31 Transfers  Transfers  31 
 March to from March 

 2015 in year in year 2016 
 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 

Earmarked Reserves      
General Fund (note 7) (4,197) (2,614) 602 (6,209) 
Housing Revenue Account 
(note 7) (1,452) (1,820) 2,759 (513) 
Major Repairs Reserve (7,288) (8,909) 14,990 (1,207) 
Capital Receipts Reserve (1,195) (4,236) 3,631 (1,800) 
Capital Grants Reserve (54) (1,355) 1,016 (393) 

 (14,186) (18,934) 22,998 (10,122) 
Balances     
General Fund (1,800) (200) 0 (2,000) 
Housing Revenue Account (2,798) (173) 0 (2,971) 

 (4,598) (373) 0 (4,971) 
     

 (18,784) (19,307) 22,998 (15,093) 

     

 
21  Unusable Reserves 
 

   
 31 March 

2016 
31 March 

2015 
 

 Ãô000 Ãô000 
   
(a) Revaluation Reserve (17,617) (15,673) 
   
(b) Capital Adjustment Account (111,244) (113,082) 
   
(c) Pensions Reserve 43,585 53,111 
   
(d) Collection Fund Adjustment Account 702 (644) 
   
(e) Accumulated Absences Account 132 124 

   
Total Unusable Reserves (84,442) (76,164) 
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(a) Revaluation Reserve 
 
The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from 
increases in the value of its Property, Plant and Equipment, including Intangible 
Assets. The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are: 

¶ Revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost; 

¶ Used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through 
depreciation; 

¶ Disposed of and the gains are realised. 
 
The Reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the 
date that the Reserve was created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are 
consolidated into the balance on the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 

    
31 March 

2015 
 31 March                    

2016 
Ãô000  Ãô000 Ãô000 

    
(15,156) Balance 1 April  (15,673) 

110 Removal of Crematorium  0 

(15,046) Restated Balance 1 April  (15,673) 
    

0 Upward revaluation of assets 0  
    
 
 

(4,765) 

(Upward) / downward revaluation of assets and 
impairment losses not charged to the 
surplus/deficit on the provision of service 

 
 

(3,520) 

 

    
 
 

(4,765) 

(Surplus) or deficit on revaluation of non-current 
assets not posted to the surplus or deficit on the 
provision of service 

  
 

(3,520) 
    

2,560 Write out of Revaluation Reserve on Investment 
Property 

0  

    
 

696 
Difference between fair value depreciation and 
historical cost depreciation 

 
755 

 

    
882 Accumulated gains on assets sold or scrapped 821  

    
 

4,138 
Amount written off to the Capital Adjustment 
Account 

  
1,576 

    
0 Movement on Crematorium  0 

    
(15,673) Balance 31 March  (17,617) 
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(b) Capital Adjustment Account 
 
The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the 
different arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets 
and for financing the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets 
under statutory provisions. The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, 
construction or enhancement as depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations 
are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (with 
reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to convert fair value figures to 
historical cost basis). The Account is credited with the amounts set aside by the 
Authority as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction and enhancement. 
 
The Account contains accumulated gains and losses in Investment Properties. 
 
The Account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and 
Equipment before 1 April 2007, the date that the revaluation Reserve was created 
to hold such gains. 
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31 March 
2015 

 31 March                    
2016 

Ãô000  Ãô000 Ãô000 

    

(100,985) Balance 1 April  (113,082) 

660 Removal of Crematorium  0 

(100,325) Restated Balance 1 April  (113,082) 

    

 Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or credited to 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement: 

  

    

13,486 Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets 20,764  

    

0 Revaluation losses on Property, Plant & Equipment 0  

    

64 Amortisation of intangible assets 88  

    

1,129 Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 1,120  

    

 
 

728 

Amounts of investment properties written off on disposal or sale as 
part of the gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income & 
Expenditure Statement 

 
 

692 

 

    

 
 

6,789 

Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part 
of the gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income & 
Expenditure Statement 

 
 

7,299 

 

    

22,196   29,963 

    

(4,138) Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation Reserve  (1,576) 

    

 
(82,267) 

Net written out amount of the cost of non-current assets consumed in 
the year 

  
(84,695) 

    

 Capital financing applied in the year:   

    

(2,370) Use of Capital Receipts Reserve to repay allowable debt (2,575)  

    

(520) Use of Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure (391)  

    

 
(1,868) 

Use of Major Repairs Reserve to finance new capital expenditure and 
debt repayment 

 
(14,990) 

 

    

 
 

(18,035) 

Capital grants and contributions credited to the Comprehensive 
Income  & Expenditure Statement that have been applied to capital 
financing 

 
 

(1,389) 

 

    

 
78 

Application of grants to capital financing from the Capital Grants 
Unapplied Account 

 
0 

 

    

 
(5,151) 

Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment charged 
against the general Fund and HRA balances/reserves 

 
(5,309) 

 

    

 
(2,325) 

Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund and HRA 
balances 

 
(2,905) 

 

    

    

    

(30,191)   (27,559) 

 
(624) 

Movements in the market value of Investment Properties debited or 
credited to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement 

  
1,010 

    

 
0 

Movement in the Donated Assets Account credited to the 
Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement 

  
0 

    

(113,082) Balance 31 March  (111,244) 
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(c) Pensions Reserve 
 
The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different 
arrangements for accounting for post employment benefits and for funding benefits 
in accordance with statutory provisions. The Authority accounts for post 
employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as 
the benefits are earned by employees accruing years of service, updating the 
liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment 
returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs. However, statutory 
arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the Authority makes 
employerôs contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for 
which it is directly responsible. The debit balance on the Pensions Reserve 
therefore shows a substantial shortfall in the benefits earned by the past and 
current employees and the resources the Council has set aside to meet them. The 
statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time 
the benefits come to be paid. 
 

   
 2015/16 2014/15 
 Ãô000 Ãô000 

   
Balance at 1 April 53,111 41,418 
Removal of crematorium 0 (177) 

Restated Balance at 1 April 53,111 41,241 
   
Actuarial (gains) or losses on pensions assets and 
liabilities 

 
(11,388) 

 
10,488 

   
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited 
or credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services in the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure 
Statement 

 
 
 

4,571 

 
 
 

3,903 
   
Employerôs pensions contributions and direct payments 
to pensioners payable in the year 

 
(2,709) 

 
(2,521) 

   
Balance at 31 March 43,585 53,111 
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(d) Collection Fund Adjustment Account 
 

The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the 
recognition of council tax and business rates income in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement as it falls due compared with the statutory 
arrangements for paying across amounts to the General Fund from the Collection 
Fund. 
 

   
 2015/16 2014/15 
 Ãô000 Ãô000 

   
Balance at 1 April (644) (413) 
   
Amount by which council tax/business rates income 
credited to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure 
Statement is different from council tax income 
calculated for the year in accordance with statutory 
requirements 

 
 
 

1,346 

 
 
 

(231) 

   
Balance at 31 March 702 (644) 

   

 
(e) Accumulated Absences Account 
 
The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise 
arise on the General Fund Balance from accruing for compensated absences 
earned but not taken in the year, e.g. annual leave entitlement carried forward at 31 
March. Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the General Fund 
Balance is neutralised by transfers to or from the Account. 
 

     
 2015/16 2014/15 
 Ãô000 Ãô000 

     
Balance at 1 April  124  110 
     
Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end 
of the preceding year 

 
(124) 

 
 

 
(110) 

 

     
Amounts accrued at the end of the current year 132  124  

     
Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the 
Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement on 
an accruals basis is different from remuneration 
chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory 
requirements 

  
 
 
 

8 

  
 
 
 

14 

     
Balance at 31 March  132  124 
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22  Cash Flow Statement ï Operating Activities 
 

   
 2015/16 2014/15 
 Ãô000 £,000 

   
Net (surplus) or deficit on provision of services 10,321 (15,807) 
   
Adjustments for non-cash movements: (33,953) (16,347) 
   
Adjustments for investing and financing activities 5,966 21,086 
   

   
Net cash flows from operating activities (17,666) (11,068) 

   

 
The cash flows from operating activities include the following items: 
 

   
 2015/16 2014/15 
 Ãô000 Ãô000 

   
Interest received (197) (73) 
   
Interest paid 5,756 5,805 
   

   
Total 5,559 5,732 
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23  Cash Flow Statement ï Investing Activities 
 

   
 2015/16 2014/15 
 Ãô000 Ãô000 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment 
property and intangible assets 

 
22,374 

 
25,155 

   
Purchase of short-term and long-term investments 0 0 
   
Other payments for investing activities 761 2,117 
   
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and 
equipment, investment property and intangible assets 

 
(4,238) 

 
(3,072) 

   
Proceeds from short-term and long-term investments 0 0 
   
Other receipts from investing activities (1,865) (18,110) 

   
Net cash flows from investing activities 17,032 6,090 

   

 
24  Cash Flow Statement ï Financing Activities 
 

   
 2015/16 2014/15 
 Ãô000 Ãô000 

   
Cash receipts for short and long-term borrowing 0 0 
   
Other movements from financing activities (0) (291) 
   
Cash payments for the reduction of the outstanding 
liabilities relating to finance leases and on-balance 
sheet PFI contracts 

 
 

118 

 
 

298 
   
Repayments of short and long-term borrowing 2,304 3,325 
   
Other payments for financing activities 0 0 

   
Net cash flows from financing activities 2,422 3,332 
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25  Amounts Reported for Resource Allocation Decisions 
 
The analysis of income and expenditure by service on the face of the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is that specified by the Service 
Reporting Code of Practice. However, decisions about resource allocation are taken 
on the basis of budget reports analysed on a directorate basis. These reports are 
prepared on a different basis from those determined by the accounting policies 
used in the financial statements. In particular: 
 

¶ No charges are made in relation to capital expenditure (whereas 
depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses in excess of the balance on 
the Revaluation Reserve and amortisations are charged to services in the 
Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement); 

 

¶ The cost of retirement benefits is based on cash flows (payment of 
employerôs pensions contributions) rather than current service cost of 
benefits accrued in the year; 

 

¶ Expenditure on some support services is budgeted for centrally and not 
charged to Directorates. 
 

The income and expenditure of the Councilôs Directorates for the year is as follows: 
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2015/16 Growth 

Directorate 
Operations 
Directorate 

Transformation 
Directorate 

Investment 
Properties 

 

Corporate 
Budgets 

Council Tax 
and Formula 

Grants 

General Fund 
Total 

HRA Total 

 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 

          

Fees, charges and other 
service income 

 
(2,642) 

 
(4,223) 

 
(3,096) 

 
(538) 

 
0 

 
0 

 
(10,499) 

 
(33,565) 

 
(44,064) 

          

Interest and investment income 0 0 0 0 (166) 0 (166) (92) (258) 
          

Government Grants (222) (24,652) (7) 0 0 (2,728) (27,609) (1,360) (28,969) 
          

Business Rate Retention 0 0 0 0 0 (4,275) (4,275) 0 (4,275) 
          

Income from Council Tax 0 0 0 0 0 (7,957) (7,957) 0 (7,957) 
          

Recharges and Other Income 0 (1,071) (679) 0 (528) 0 (2,278) (50) (2,328) 

          
Total Income (2,864) (29,946) (3,782) (538) (694) (14,960) (52,784) (35,067) (87,851) 

          

Employee expenses 3,462 6,014 3,736 0 0 0 13,212 596 13,808 
          

Premises Related Expenditure 12 688 603 122 0 0 1,425 167 1,592 
          

Transport Costs 100 560 31 0 0 0 691 0 691 
          

Supplies and Services 1,993 2,744 1,173 31 122 0 6,063 11,599 17,662 
          

Support Services 91 106 577 4 0 0 778 1,357 2,135 
          

Transfer Payments 0 24,134 0 0 0 0 24,134 0 24,134 
          

Capital Financing Costs 15 875 68 0 256 0 1,214 10,078 11,292 
          

Interest Payments 0 58 0 0 35 0 93 5,484 5,577 
          

Precepts and Levies 0 0 0 0 0 3,145 3,145 0 3,145 
          

Gain or Loss on Disposal of 
Non-Current Assets 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
3,793 

 
3,793 

          

Transfer to Reserves 0 0 0 0 1,829 0 1,829 1,820 3,649 
          

Transfer to Balances 0 0 0 0 200 0 200 173 373 

          
Total Expenditure 5,673 35,179 6,188 157 2,442 3,145 52,784 35,067 87,851 

          
Net Expenditure 2,809 5,233 2,406 (381) 1,748 (11,815) 0 0 0 
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2014/15 Growth 
Directorate 

Operations 
Directorate 

Transformation 
Directorate 

Investment 
Properties 

 

Corporate 
Budgets 

Council Tax 
and Formula 

Grants 

General Fund 
Total 

HRA Total 

 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 

Fees, charges and other 
service income 

 
(2,434) 

 
(4,559) 

 
(3,035) 

 
(523) 

 
0 

 
0 

 
(10,551) 

 
(33,371) 

 
(43,922) 

          

Interest and investment income 0 0 0 0 (26) 0 (26) (26) (52) 
          

Government Grants (188) (24,119) 0 0 0 (3,454) (27,761) (17,729) (45,490) 
          

Business Rate Retention 0 0 0 0 0 (2,987) (2,987) 0 (2,987) 
          

Income from Council Tax 0 0 0 0 0 (7,872) (7,872) 0 (7,872) 
          

Recharges and Other Income 0 (949) (740) 0 (528) 0 (2,217) (50) (2,267) 

          
Total Income (2,622) (29,627) (3,775) (523) (554) (14,313) (51,414) (51,176) (102,590) 

          

Employee expenses 3,245 5,926 3,774 0 0 0 12,945 570 13,515 
          

Premises Related Expenditure 12 730 603 63 0 0 1,408 284 1,692 
          

Transport Costs 78 624 28 0 0 0 730 0 730 
          

Supplies and Services 1,941 2,514 1,084 28 56 0 5,623 10,829 16,452 
          

Support Services 103 110 620 3 0 0 836 1,373 2,209 
          

Transfer Payments 0 23,691 0 0 0 0 23,691 0 23,691 
          

Capital Financing Costs 8 1,427 517 0 256 0 2,208 25,510 27,718 
          

Interest Payments 0 111 0 0 136 0 247 5,476 5,723 
          

Precepts and Levies 0 0 0 0 0 3,128 3,128 0 3,128 
          

Gain or Loss on Disposal of 
Non-Current Assets 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
4,413 

 
4,413 

          

Transfer to Reserves 0 0 0 0 339 0 339 2,340 2,679 
          

Transfer to Balances 0 0 0 0 259 0 259 381 640 

          
Total Expenditure 5,387 35,133 6,626 94 1,046 3,128 51,414 51,176 102,590 

          
Net Expenditure 2,765 5,506 2,851 (429) 492 (11,185) 0 0 0 
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Reconciliation of Directorate Income and Expenditure to Cost of Services in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
 
This reconciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of directorate income and 
expenditure relate to the amounts included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. 
 

   
 2015/16 2014/15 
 Ãô000 Ãô000 

   
Net expenditure in the Directorate Analysis 0 0 
   
Amounts in the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure 
Statement not reported to management in the analysis 

 
14,527 

 
(12,488) 

   
Amounts included in the analysis not included in the 
Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement 

 
(4,022) 

 
(3,319) 

   
Cost of Services in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement 

 
10,505 

 
(15,807) 
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Reconciliation to Subjective Analysis 
 
This reconciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of directorate income and 
expenditure relate to a subjective analysis of the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 

     
2015/16     

 Directorate 
Analysis 

Amounts not 
reported to 

management 
for making 
decisions 

Amounts 
not 

included in 
I&E 

Total 

 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 
     
Fees, charges & other service income (44,064) 0 0 (44,064) 
     

Interest and investment income (258) 0 0 (258) 
     

Grants and Contributions (28,969) (373) 0 (29,342) 
     

Business Rate Retention (4,275) 1,309 0 (2,966) 

Income from Council Tax (7,957) 38 0 (7,919) 
     

Recharges and Other Income (2,328) (10,125) 0 (12,453) 

     
Total Income (87,851) (9,151) 0 (97,002) 

     
Employee expenses 13,808 1,871 0 15,679 
     

Premises Related Expenditure 1,592 0 0 1,592 
     

Transport Costs 691 0 0 691 
     

Supplies and Services 17,662 766 0 18,428 
     

Support Services 2,135 10,125 0 12,260 
     

Transfer Payments 24,134 14,042 0 38,176 
     

Capital Financing Costs 11,292 0 0 11,292 
     

Interest Payments 5,577 0 0 5,577 
     

Precepts and Levies 3,145 0 0 3,145 
     

Gain or Loss on Disposal of Non-
current  Assets 

 
3,793 

 
(3,793) 

 
0 

 
0 

     

Payments to Housing Capital Receipts 
Pool 

 
0 

 
667 

 
0 

 
667 

     

Transfer to Reserves 3,649 0 (3,649) 0 
 

 
   

Transfer to Balances 373 0 (373) 0 

     
Total Expenditure 87,851 23,678 (4,022) 107,507 

     
Surplus or deficit on the provision of 
services 

 
0 

 
14,527 

 
(4,022) 

 
10,505 
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2014/15     

 Directorate 
Analysis 

Amounts not 
reported to 

management 
for making 
decisions 

Amounts 
not 

included 
in I&E 

Total 

 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 
     
Fees, charges & other service income (43,922) 0 0 (43,922) 
     

Interest and investment income (52) 0 0 (52) 
     

Grants and Contributions (45,490) (285) 0 (45,775) 
     

Business Rate Retention (2,987) 0 0 (2,987) 

Income from Council Tax (7,872) (231) 0 (8,103) 
     

Recharges and Other Income (2,267) (12,280) 0 (14,547) 

     
Total Income (102,590) (12,796) 0 (115,386) 

     
Employee expenses 13,515 1,395 0 14,910 
     

Premises Related Expenditure 1,692 0 0 1,692 
     

Transport Costs 730 0 0 730 
     

Supplies and Services 16,452 653 0 17,105 
     

Support Services 2,209 12,280 0 14,489 
     

Transfer Payments 23,691 0 0 23,691 
     

Capital Financing Costs 27,718 (10,182) 0 17,536 
     

Interest Payments 5,723 0 0 5,723 
     

Precepts and Levies 3,128 0 0 3,128 
     

Gain or Loss on Disposal of Non-
current  Assets 

 
4,413 

 
(4,413) 

 
0 

 
0 

     

Payments to Housing Capital Receipts 
Pool 

 
0 

 
575 

 
0 

 
575 

     

Transfer to Reserves 2,679 0 (2,679) 0 
 

 
   

Transfer to Balances 640 0 (640) 0 

     
Total Expenditure 102,590 308 (3,319) 99,579 

     
Surplus or deficit on the provision of 
services 

 
0 

 
(12,488) 

 
(3,319) 

 
(15,807) 

     

 
26  Acquired and Discontinued Operations 
 
Acquired Services 
The Council has not acquired any new services during the year. 
 
Discontinued Services 
The Council has not discontinued any of its services during the year. 
 
27  Construction Contracts 
 
At 31 March 2016 the Council had no construction contracts in place.  
 



OTHER NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 

North East Derbyshire District Council Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
107 

 

 
28 Events after the Balance Sheet Date 
 
The Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Chief Financial Officer on      
27 May 2016. Events taking place after this date are not reflected in the financial 
statements or notes. Where events taking place before this date provided information 
about conditions existing at 31 March 2016, the figures in the financial statements and 
notes have been adjusted in all material respects to reflect the impact of this information. 
 
Non-adjusting event after the reporting period for Brexit 
 
On Thursday 23 June 2016 the UK held an in-out referendum on its European Union (EU) 
membership. The result was a decision to leave the EU. The process to take the UK out of 
the EU starts with invoking Article 50 of the Lisbon Treaty. This gives the two sides two 
years to agree the terms of the split. The Prime Minister has said that Article 50 will not be 
invoked before the end of 2016. The Council will continue to monitor the position to identify 
and put in place appropriate arrangements for managing the position. 
 
29  Agency and Contractual Agreements  
 
The Council has a contractual agreement with Derbyshire County Council whereby the 
Council undertakes for mowing, weeding and tree pruning on land adjoining highways 
within the district.  The District Council is reimbursed for expenditure incurred on these 
activities including a contribution towards administrative costs. A summary of expenditure 
incurred in respect of the contract is shown below and this is included within the Highways, 
Roads and Transport Services line of the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure 
Statement. 
 

 2015/16 2014/15 
 Ãô000 Ãô000 
   
Amenity Maintenance 286 302 
   

 286 302 

   

 
30 Membersô Allowances 
 
The Council paid the following amounts to elected members during the year. These costs 
are included within the Corporate and Democratic Core line of the Comprehensive Income 
& Expenditure Statement. 
 

 2015/16 2014/15 
 Ãô000 Ãô000 
   
Allowances 383 390 
Expenses 7 8 
   

 390 398 
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31 Officer Emoluments 
 
In addition to those employees covered within this note who are directly employed by the 
Council, part of the Management Team including the Chief Executive and two directors are 
employed by Bolsover District Council. The costs associated with these arrangements are 
included within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
The number of employees (excluding senior officers) whose remuneration, excluding 
employerôs pension contributions, was £50,000 or more in bands of £5,000 were:-  
 

Remuneration Number of Number of 

Band  Employees Employees 

 2015/16 2014/15 

   
£50,000 ï £54,999 0 0 

£55,000 ï £59,999 0 0 

£60,000 ï £64,999 0 1 

£65,000 ï £69,999 0 1 

£70,000 ï £74,999 0 0 

£75,000 ï £79,999 0 0 

£80,000 ï £84,999 0 0 

£85,000 ï £89,999 0 0 

£90,000 ï £94,999 0 0 

£95,000 ï £99,999 0 0 

£100,000 ï £104,999 0 0 

   

 
Senior Officers 
 
The Council is required to disclose all posts where the total remuneration exceeds £50,000 
but does not exceed £150,000. Those posts identified as Senior Officers are within this 
remuneration range but also report directly the head of paid service. 
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Senior Officers emoluments - Salary is between £50,000 and £150,000 for 2015/16: 
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Senior Officers emoluments - Salary is between £50,000 and £150,000 for 2014/15: 
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The numbers of exit packages, excluding the senior officer emoluments set out in the 
above tables, with total cost per band and total cost of the compulsory and other 
redundancies are set out in the table below:- 
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32 Termination Benefits 
 
The Council terminated the contracts of a number of employees during 2015/16, incurring 
liabilities of £0.297m (£0.098m in 2014/15), excluding senior officer emoluments, 
presented separately above. Council has received a contribution of £0.074m towards their 
costs from Bolsover District Council. In addition to this, as part of the Strategic Alliance 
with Bolsover District Council, further contracts were terminated by Bolsover District 
Council where North East Derbyshire District Council was liable to pay a contribution 
towards these costs. These amounted to £0.037m.  
 
33 Audit Fees 
 
During 2015/16 North East Derbyshire District Council incurred the following fees relating 
to external audit and inspection: 
 

 2015/16 
Ãô000 

 

2014/15 
Ãô000 

 

¶ Fees payable to the auditors with regard to 
external audit services carried out by the 
appointed auditor. 

57 75 

¶ Fees payable to the auditors in respect of 
statutory inspection. 

0 0 

¶ Fees payable to the auditors for the 
certification of grant claims and returns. 

9 12 

¶ Fees payable in respect of any other 
services provided by the appointed auditor. 

5 0 

¶    

   

Total 71 87 

   

 
34 Related Parties 
 
The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties ï bodies or 
individuals that have the potential to control or influence the Council or to be controlled or 
influenced by the Council.  Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the 
extent to which the Council might have been constrained in its ability to operate 
independently, or might have secured the ability to limit another partyôs ability to bargain 
freely with the Council. 
 
Central Government 
 
Central Government has effective control over the general operations of the Council; it is 
responsible for providing the statutory framework, within which the Council operates, 
provides the majority of its funding in the form of grants and prescribes the terms of many 
of the transactions that the Council has with other parties (e.g. housing benefits). Grants 
received from government departments are set out in note 6.  
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Members 
 
Members of the Council have direct control over the Councilôs financial and operating 
policies.  Council Members make disclosures of relevant interests to the Councilôs 
Monitoring Officer, and also have to make declarations on individual committee decisions.  
The Council also nominates Members to sit on outside bodies.  A number of Council 
Members are also Members of Derbyshire County Council, local parish councils, or 
various local voluntary organisations, which the Council supports financially.  Four 
Members of the Council sit on the board of Rykneld Homes Limited as Council nominees. 
Where necessary, Members declared such interests when relevant to their duties and thus 
no further disclosure is considered necessary. 
 
Officers 
 
In addition to the Register of Interests, Senior Officers were required to complete a 
Declaration of Related Party Transactions Pro-Forma for the year 2015/16. During 
2015/16 payments of £18,333 (2014/15, £3,000) have been made to that organisation. 
 
Other Significant Transactions 
 
Other significant transactions with related parties, not included above, are as follows: 
 

 Receipts Payments 
 Ãô000 Ãô000 
Revenue   
Bolsover District Council (1,935) 790 
Chesterfield Borough Council (102) 238 
Citizens Advice Bureau 0 78 
Derbyshire County Council (excluding 
precepts) 

 
(1,684) 

 
747 

Derbyshire Dales District Council (209) 2 
Parish Councils (excluding precepts) (546) 55 
Rykneld Homes Limited (1,252) 10,721 
Chesterfield Royal Hospital 0 34 
   
Capital   
Rykneld Homes Limited 0 17,342 
   
Loan   
Rykneld Homes Limited 0 761 
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During 2015/16 the Council had partnership agreements with Bolsover District Council 
(BDC), Chesterfield Borough Council (CBC), Chesterfield Royal Hospital and Derbyshire 
Dales District Council (DDDC) in the following areas: 
 

¶ Internal Audit 

¶ Building Control 

¶ Procurement 

¶ ICT Service 

¶ Environmental Health 

¶ Crematorium 
 

The Internal Audit and Building Control Consortiums are hosted by CBC. The accounts 
reflect the payments made to CBC towards the costs of running the service and our share 
of the income received for the Building Control Consortium. 
 
During 2015/16 the procurement arrangements for NEDDC have been provided by 
Chesterfield Royal Hospital and the contributions towards this are shown in the accounts. 
 
The Council hosts Joint ICT Service which covers BDC, Derbyshire Dales District Council 
and ourselves for the provision of the Councilôs ICT. We also host the Joint Environmental 
Health Service which covers BDC and ourselves. The accounts reflect the total cost of 
these services less contributions from BDC and Derbyshire Dales District Council.  
 
During 2015/16 the Council agreed to lend Rykneld Homes Limited £0.761m to support 
the building of 30 new properties in Eckington and Killamarsh. This is the final payment of 
the loan taken out in 2013/14. These properties will be owned by Rykneld Homes Limited 
as a Registered Provider.  
 
The details of the loans made to Rykneld Homes Limited are shown below: - 
 

      
Loans by Scheme Loan Start 

Date 
Loan 

Period 
Initial 

Amount 
Amount 
Repaid 

Remaining 
Amount 

   Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 
      
Eckington & Killamarsh  31/3/14 25 yrs 1,633 (47) 1,586 
      
Dronfield  31/4/15 25 yrs 453 (18) 435 
      
Grassmoor  31/4/15 25 yrs 1,066 (43) 1,023 
      

Total    3,152 (108) 3,044 
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35 Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing 
 
The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below, 
together with the resources that have been used to finance it. Where capital expenditure is 
to be financed in future years by charges to revenue as assets used by the Council, the 
expenditure results in an increase in the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure 
of the capital expenditure incurred historically by the Council that has yet to be financed.  
 2015/16 2014/15 
 Ãô000 Ãô000 
   
Opening Capital Financing Requirement 174,459 172,455 
   
Removal of Crematorium 0 (9) 

   
Restated Opening Capital Financing Requirement 174,459 172,446 
   
Movement in Debtors ï Borrowing 764 2,116 
Movement in Debtors ï Repayments (157) (162) 
   
Capital Investment   
   
Property, Plant & Equipment 22,508 29,064 
   
Intangible Assets 11 57 
   
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute:   
  - Other REFCUS items 1,120 1,129 
   
Sources of Finance   
   
Capital Receipts (391) (520) 
   
MRA (14,990) (1,868) 
   
Government Grants & other contributions (1,389) (17,957) 
   
Amounts set aside from Revenue:   
   
Repayment of Allowable Debt (2,575) (2,370) 
   
Direct Revenue Contributions (2,905) (2,325) 
   
MRP & Debt Repayment from MRA (5,310) (5,151) 

   
Closing Capital Financing Requirement 171,145 174,459 

   
Explanation of Movements in Year   
   
Increase in underlying need to borrowing (supported)   
   -   Decent Homes Programme 1,843 5,150 
   
Increase in underlying need to borrowing (prudential) 2,123 2,430 
   
Repayment of debt (7,280) (5,567) 

   
Increase/(decrease) in Capital Financing Requirement 3,314 2,013 
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36 Leases 
 
Council as Lessee 
 
Finance Leases 
 
The Council makes use of leased vehicles for providing its services. This method of 
finance is used as an alternative to the Council using its own capital resources. A review of 
all leases held by the Council has concluded that the majority of vehicles leased are 
finance leases and they now appear on the Balance Sheet. Vehicle finance leases beyond 
their contracted period are classed as spot hire and as such appear in the operating 
leases figures. 
 
The assets acquired under these leases are carried as Property, Plant and Equipment in 
the Balance Sheet at the following net amounts: 
 

   
 31 March 

2016 
31 March 

2015 
 Ãô000 Ãô000 
   
Vehicles, Plant, Furniture and Equipment 5 112 

   
 5 112 

   

 
The Council is committed to making minimum payments under these leases comprising 
settlement of the long term liability for the interest in the assets acquired by the Council 
and finance costs that will be payable by the Council in future years while the liability 
remains outstanding. The minimum lease payments are made up of the following amounts: 
 
   
 31 March 

2016 
31 March 

2015 
 Ãô000 Ãô000 
   
Finance lease liabilities (NPV of minimum lease 
payments): 

  

   
Current 0 0 
   
Non-current 112 421 
   
Disposal to leases (0) (11) 
   
Finance cost payable in future years (5) (112) 

   
Minimum lease payments 107 298 
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The minimum lease payments (including interest) will be payable over the following 
periods: 
 

     
 Minimum Lease 

Payments (including 
interest) 

Finance Lease 
Liabilities 

 31 March 
2016 

31 March 
2015 

31 March 
2016 

31 March 
2015 

 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 Ãô000 
     
Not later than one year 4 140 5 107 
     
Later than one year and not 
later than five years 

 
0 

 
4 

 
0 

 
5 

     
Later than five years 0 0 0 0 

     
 4 144 5 112 

     

 
Operating Leases 
 
Operating leases held by the Council comprise of vehicles, photocopiers and gym 
equipment. Total payment in 2015/16 was £0.113m (2014/15, £0.190m). 
 
Within the vehicles operating lease an amount of £0.000m (2014/15, £0.089m) was 
recharged to Rykneld Homes Limited. 
 
The following table identifies the Councilôs operating lease liability: 
 
During 2015/16 the increases in liability are due to the rental of new photocopiers.  
 

   
 31 March 

2016 
31 March 

2015 
 Ãô000 Ãô000 
   
Not later than one year 54 48 
   
Later than one year and not later than five years 114 130 
   
Later than five years 0 0 

   
 168 178 
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Authority as Lessor 
 
Finance Leases 
 
The Council have no finance leases where it is the Lessor. 
 
Operating Leases 
 
The Council owns Investment Properties to the value of £12.294m (£13.996m 2014/15). 
These properties include industrial units, shops and other miscellaneous properties.  The 
Council leases these properties out and generated rental income of £0.538m during 
2015/16, (2014/15, £0.523m) No depreciation is charged on investment properties.  
 
The table below shows the projected income from operating leases as at 31 March 2016: 
 

   
 31 March 

2016 
31 March 

2015 
 Ãô000 Ãô000 
   
Not later than one year 934 981 
Later than one year and not later than five years 1,492 1,924 
Later than five years 148 246 

   
 2,574 3,151 

   

 
Business Centres with a gross book value of £1.581m (£2.161m, 2014/15), accumulated 
depreciation of £0.060m (£0.026m, 2014/15) and net book value of £1.521m (£2.135m, 
2014/15) are also owned by the Council.  During 2015/16 lease income of £0.288m 
(£0.284m, 2014/15) was received from these units.  
 
37 Defined Benefit Pension Schemes  
 
The Council, in line with all other Local Authority employers and as part of the terms and 
conditions of employment of its officers, makes contributions towards the cost of post-
employment benefits.  Although these benefits will not actually be payable until the 
employees retire, the Council has a commitment to make the payments (for those benefits) 
and to disclose them at the time that employees earn their future entitlement. 
 
Employees of North East Derbyshire District Council are admitted to the Derbyshire 
County Council Pension Fund (the Fund), which is administered by Derbyshire County 
Council under the regulations governing the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), 
a defined benefit final salary scheme, meaning that the Authority and employees pay 
contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pensions liabilities 
with investment assets.  
 
The following notes on Pension Contributions do not include detailed figures for the Joint 
Crematorium (with the exception of the scheme history table).  
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Transactions relating to Post-employment Benefits.  
 
The cost of retirement benefits is recognised in the Net Cost of Services within the 
Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement, when they are earned by the 
employees rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions.  However, the 
charge we are required to make against council tax is based on the cash payable in the 
year, so the real cost of retirement benefits is reversed out of the General Fund via the 
Movement in Reserves Statement. The following transactions have been made in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the Statement of Movement in 
the General Fund Balance in the year: 
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 2015/16 
Ãô000 

2014/15 
Ãô000 

   
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement   
   
Cost of Service   
   
Current Service Cost 2743 2,139 
Past Service Cost 126 0 
(Gain)/loss from settlements 0 0 
   
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure   
   
Net interest expense 1,702 1,764 

   
Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the 
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Service 

 
4,571 

 
3,903 

   
Other Post Employment Benefit Charged to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

  

   
Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability 
comprising: - 

  

   
Return on plan assets (excluding the amount included 
in the net interest expense) 

2,490 (5,517) 

   
Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in 
demographic assumptions 

0 0 

   
Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in 
financial assumptions 

(11,975) 17,065 

   
Other (if applicable) (1,903) (1,060) 

   
Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

 
(11,388) 

 
10,488 

   
Movement in Reserves Statement   
   
Reversal of net charges made to the Surplus or Deficit 
for the Provision of Services for post employment 
benefits in accordance with the Code 

 
 

1,862 

 
 

1,382 

   
Actual amount charged against the General Fund 
balance in the year: 

  

Employers Contributions Payable to Scheme 2,709 2,521 
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 Pensions Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet 

 
The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the authorityôs obligation in respect 
of its defined benefits plan is as follows: 
 

   
 2015/16 

Ãô000 
2014/15 
Ãô000 

   
Present value of the defined benefit obligation (53,111) (41,241) 
Fair value of plan assets (377) 7,648 

Sub-total (53,488) (33,593) 
   
Other movement in the liability (asset) 9,903 (19,518) 

Net Total (43,585) (53,111) 

   

 
The following tables analyse the movement in the values of the schemes assets and 
liabilities.  
 
Reconciliation of the Movements in the Fair Value of Scheme (Plan) Assets 

  

   
 2015/16 

Ãô000 
2014/15 
Ãô000 

   
Opening fair value of scheme assets 80,328 72,680 
   
Interest Income 2,563 3,102 
   
Re-measurement gain/(loss):   
The return on plan assets, excluding the amount 
included in the net interest expense 

(2,490) 5,517 

The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates 0 0 
Contributions from employer 2,709 2,521 
Contributions from employees into the scheme 535 521 
Benefits paid (3,694) (4,015) 

Closing fair value of scheme assets 79,951 80,328 
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


